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Date Date

Statementof Directorsôresponsibilities in relation to the financial statementsfor the period ended

30 June 2023

Thedirectorsacceptresponsibilityfor thepreparationof thefinancialstatementsthatgive a trueandfair

view in accordancewith InternationalFinancialReportingStandardsandin the mannerrequiredby the

Companies and Allied Matters Act and Financial Reporting Council of Nigeria Act, 2011.

The directorsfurther acceptresponsibilityfor maintainingadequateaccountingrecordsas requiredby

the Companiesand Allied Matters Act, and for such internal control as the directorsdetermineis

necessaryto enablethe preparationof financial statementsthat are free from material misstatement

whether due to fraud or error.

The directorshavemadean assessmentof theCompanyôsability to continueas a going concernand

have no reason to believe the Company will not remain a going concern in the year ahead.
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MRS Oil Nigeria Plc.

Financial Statementsï 30 June 2023

Statement of  Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

for the period ended 30 June, 2023

Notes April-June 2023 30 June 2023 April-June 2022 30 June 2022

ô000 ô000 ô000 ô000

Revenues 5           28,860,437               59,648,894               24,764,830                    42,660,939 

Cost of sales 8         (23,761,121)             (50,738,133)              (22,903,031)                 (39,944,683)

Gross profit             5,099,315                 8,910,760                 1,861,799                      2,716,256 

Other income 6                  38,508                      61,319                     (33,803)                          37,467 

Administrative expenses 10           (3,463,217)               (4,923,488)                (1,227,725)                   (2,202,939)

Selling and distribution expenses 9                  (7,623)                  (209,884)                   (102,000)                      (191,535)

 Impairment loss on  financial assets 31a              (499,264)                  (705,485)                    255,911                         208,119 

Operating Profit             1,167,720                 3,133,223                    754,183                         567,368 

Finance income 11                  35,631                      51,870                     (51,650)                          (9,308)

Finance costs 11                (31,033)                    (69,968)                     (22,764)                        (73,307)

Net finance costs 11                    4,598                     (18,098)                     (74,413)                        (82,615)

Profit  before Taxation 12             1,172,318                 3,115,125                    679,770                         484,752 

Income Tax Expense 14              (337,014)                  (804,691)                   (286,506)                      (132,939)

Profit after tax for the period                835,304                 2,310,434                    393,263                         351,813 

Other Comprehensive Income, net of income tax                         -                                -   

Total comprehensive income for the period                835,304                 2,310,434                    393,263                         351,813 

Earnings/(loss) per share

Basic and diluted earnings per share (Naira) 13                      2.44                          6.74                          1.29                               1.15 

The accompanying notes on pages 8 to 45 form an integral part of these financial statements. 
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MRS Oil Nigeria Plc.

Financial Statementsï 30 June 2023

Statement of Financial Position 

as at 30 June 2023

Notes 30 Jun. 2023 31 Dec. 2022

ô000 ô000

Assets

Non current assets

Property, plant and equipment 15                   19,371,788          14,977,953 

Deferred tax Asset 14e)                        323,561 

Right of use assets 30(i)                        790,955               838,031 

Intangible assets 16                        128,064                          7 

Total non-current assets                   20,614,367          15,815,991 

Current Assets

Inventories              20                   14,873,168            3,302,008 

Withholding tax receivables 19                           38,268                 11,239 

Prepayments 28                        189,745               149,124 

Trade and other receivables 18                   13,475,948          18,031,307 

Cash and cash equivalents 21                     2,161,140            3,216,445 

Total current assets                   30,738,269          24,710,122 

Total assets                   51,352,637          40,526,114 

Equity 

Share capital 22(a) 171,442                                     171,442 

Retained earnings 22(b)                   20,638,438          18,328,004 

Total equity                   20,809,880          18,499,446 

Liabilities

Non current liabilities

Employee benefit obligation 23                           10,692                   9,085 

Provisions 29                        247,105               224,179 

Lease liabilities 30                        108,908               103,581 

Deferred tax liabilities 14(e)                                  -                 480,657 

Total non-current liabilities                        366,705               817,501 

Current liabilities

Contract liabilities 24                     2,576,066            2,221,109 

Dividend payable 26                        169,851               169,851 

Trade and other payables 26                   23,931,673          16,068,426 

Short term borrowings 27                     1,411,105            1,411,105 

Lease liabilities 30                        427,863               420,676 

Tax payable 14(d)                     1,659,493               917,999 

Total current liabilities                   30,176,051          21,209,166 

Total liabilities                   30,542,757          22,026,668 

Total equity and liabilities                   51,352,637          40,526,114 

Approved by the Board of Directors on 27 July 2023 and signed on its behalf by:

The accompanying notes on pages 8 to 45 form an integral part of these financial statements. 

)Mr Marco Storari (Managing Director) 

FRC/2020/003/00000022083

) Dr. Amobi D. Nwokafor (Director)

FRC/2013/ICAN/000000002770

) Mr. Samson Adejonwo(Chief Finance Officer) 

FRC/2020/001/00000021998
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MRS Oil Nigeria Plc.

Financial Statementsï 30 June 2023

Statement of Changes in Equity

for the period ended 30 June, 2023

Share 

capital 

Retained 

earnings

Total 

equity

ô000 ô000 ô000

Balance as at 1 January 2022               152,393          17,030,951         17,183,344 

Total comprehensive income: 

Profit for the year                        -                 351,813              351,813 

Total comprehensive income for the year                        -                 351,813              351,813 

Balance as at 30 June 2022               152,393          17,382,764         17,535,157 

Share 

capital 

Retained 

earnings

Total 

equity

ô000 ô000 ô000

Balance as at 1 January 2023               171,442          18,328,004         18,499,446 

Total comprehensive income: 

Profit for the period                        -              2,310,434           2,310,434 

Other comprehensive income                        -    -                        -   

Total comprehensive income                        -              2,310,434           2,310,434 

Transactions with owners of the Company

Value of bonus shares issue                        -                          -   

Total transactions with owners of the Company                        -                          -                          -   

Balance as at 30 June 2023               171,442          20,638,438         20,809,880 
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MRS Oil Nigeria Plc.

Financial Statementsï 30 June 2023

Statement of Cash Flows for the period ended 30 June 2023

Notes 30 June 2023 30 June 2022

ô000 ô000

Cash flows from operating activities:

Profit after tax           2,310,434            351,813 

Adjustments for:

Depreciation on PPE 15              354,529            328,123 

Depreciation on  Right of Use Assets 30(i)                65,339              50,158 

Amortisation of intangible assets 16                20,996                     22 

Finance income 11              (51,870)            (18,352)

Finance costs 11                69,968            135,707 

Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment 10                (9,126)            102,662 

Reversal of accrued Lease liabiity 31(iii)                        -              (24,745)

Net foreign exchange loss 10           2,429,253            (27,760)

Withholding tax credit notes utilised 14(d)            (702,165)                      -   

Provision for/(reversal of)long service award 23(c)                  1,608                   446 

Reversal of Impairment loss on trade receivables 31(a)              (85,236)          (208,119)

Impairment of Petroleum Equalization Fund receivables 31(a)           1,000,000                      -   

Impairment of Related party receivables 31(a)            (209,280)                      -   

Impairment/Reversal of impairment on Inventory 20(a)                10,562            (32,256)

Taxation 14              804,691            132,939 

          6,009,703            790,638 

Changes in: 

- Inventories       (11,581,723)            336,754 

- Trade, other receivables and prepayments            3,987,993       (1,258,024)

- Prepayments              (40,621)            (95,530)

Contract liability(Customer Advance received)              354,957                      -   

- Trade and other payables           5,313,352       (1,549,593)

Cash generated from operations           4,043,662       (1,775,754)

Income taxes paid 14(d)            (165,250)            (69,106)

Net cash generated from operating activities           3,878,412       (1,844,860)

Cash flows from investing activities:

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment                13,157              65,094 

Purchase of property, plant and equipment 15         (4,752,394)          (289,039)

Purchase of ROU assets 30(iii)              (15,000)            (11,000)

Purchase of Intangible Assets 16            (149,053)                      -   

Interest received 11                51,870              18,352 

Net cash used for investing activities (4,851,419)        (216,594)         

Cash flows from financing activities:

Additional short term borrowings 27         17,348,091       17,019,539 

Short term borrowing repayment 27       (17,348,091)     (16,568,539)

Interest paid 11              (22,791)            (62,400)

Net cash used in financing activities (37,791)             388,600          

Net change in cash and cash equivalents         (1,010,798)       (1,672,853)

Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January           3,216,445         2,798,796 

Effect of movements in exchange rates on cash held              (44,507)          (119,248)

Cash and cash equivalents at 30 June 2023 21           2,161,140         1,006,695 

The accompanying notes on pages 8 to 45 form an integral part of these financial statements. 
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MRS Oil Nigeria Plc.

CƛƴŀƴŎƛŀƭ {ǘŀǘŜƳŜƴǘǎς ол WǳƴŜ нлно

1. Reporting entity

2 Basis of preparation

(a) Statement of compliance

(b) Basis of measurement

(c) Composition of Financial statements

The financial statements comprise:

i Statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income

ii Statement of financial position

iii Statement of changes in equity

iv Statement of cash flows

v Notes to the financial statements

(d) Financial Period

(e) Functional and presentation currency

(f) Significant changes in the current reporting year

g) Going Concern

The directors have evaluated all the events and conditions that may cast significant doubts on the ability of the company to continue as a going concern 

and also its operations in the foreseable future and reached a conclusion that, the Company will continue in business without the existence of a material 

uncertainty about the company's ability to operate as a going concern.

The new managementof the Companyannounceda changeof nameof the Companyfrom ChevronOil Nigeria Plc to MRS Oil Nigeria Plc (ñMRSò)

effective2 December2009 following the ratification of the namechangeof the Companyat the 40th Annual GeneralMeetingof the Companyon 29

September 2009.

Thesefinancial statementshavebeenpreparedin accordancewith InternationalFinancialReportingStandards(IFRSs) as issuedby the International

AccountingStandardsBoard(IASB) andin the mannerrequiredby theCompaniesandAllied MattersAct, 2020andthe FinancialReportingCouncilof

Nigeria Act, 2011.

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain financial intruments measured at fair value.

Thesefinancialstatementsarepresentedin NigerianNaira,which is theCompanyôsfunctionalcurrency.All financial informationpresentedin Naira

have been rounded to the nearest thousand unless stated otherwise.

The Company is domiciled in Nigeria and has its registered office address at: 

2, Tincan Road

Lagos                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                  

Nigeria

The Companyis principally engagedin the businessof marketinganddistributionof refinedpetroleumproducts,blendingandselling of lubricants

and manufacturing and selling of greases.

These financial statements cover the period from 1 January 2023 to 30 June 2023 with comparative figures for the financial year from 1 January 2022 

to 30 June 2022 .

The removal of subsidy on Petroleum Motor Spirit (PMS) announced immediately after inauguration by the new president has totally changed the 

dynamics of the industry.This product line alone contribute about 97% of total revenue of the Company. The policy has significantly affected the 

working capital requiremet of the company and its attendant finance cost on bank credit lines for product acquisition which directly  contributed to 

substantial increase in the landing cost of the product and other input costs. Subsequently, these have reduced the demand for the product since people 

have scaled down on their usage of petroleum  and opt for alternative source due to high price per litre of the product. These recent events will 

continue to have an impact on oil price volatility. The Company will continue to monitor the oil prices and take adequate steps to manage its business 

and any financial impact of same. However, the Companyôs operations are not affected by seasonality or cyclic situation.

Notes to the financial statements

The Companywas incorporatedas TexacoNigeria Limited (a privately ownedCompany) on 12 August 1969 and wasconvertedto a Public Limited

Liability companyquotedon the Nigerian Stock Exchangein 1978,as a result of the 1977 Nigerian EnterprisesPromotionsDecree.The Companyis

domiciledin Nigeriaandits sharesarelisted on theNigerianStockExchange(NSE).TheCompanyôsnamewaschangedto TexacoNigeriaPlc. in 1990

and again on 1 September 2006 to Chevron Oil Nigeria Plc.

On 20 March 2009,therewasan acquisitionof ChevronAfrica HoldingsLimited, (a BermudianCompany)by CorlayGlobal SA of Moffson Building,

East54th Street,Panama,Republicof Panama.By virtue of this foreign transaction,ChevronNigeria HoldingsLimited, Bermudachangedits nameto

MRS Africa Holdings Limited, Bermuda.
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MRS Oil Nigeria Plc.

CƛƴŀƴŎƛŀƭ {ǘŀǘŜƳŜƴǘǎς ол WǳƴŜ нлно

Notes to the financial statements

3 Critical accounting judgement and key sources of estimating uncertainty

Use of judgements and estimates

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

(i) Recoverability of financial assets-Account receivables

(ii) Provision for site decommisionning

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting period that may have a significant risk of causing a material 

adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are discussed below.

In 2022, the Company reviews the provision on asset retirement obligation based on the current inflation rate of 21.34% and interest rate of 16.5% as at the 

end of the reporting period.  In estimating the provision, the directors have made assumptions regarding the estimated costs of restoring the site based on 

currently available information about the likely extent of decommissioning liability. This has resulted to change in estimate and gave rise to additional right 

of use asset as well as asset retirement obligation amounting to NGN 170.7 million Note 30 & 29)

TheCompanyreviewsall financialassetsat leastquarterlyandwhenthereis anyindicationthattheassetmight beimpaired.Lossallowancefor trade

receivablesis measuredat an amountequalto twelve monthsECL. The expectedcredit losseson tradereceivablesareestimatedusinga provision

matrix by referenceto pastdefaultexperienceof thedebtorandanalysisof thedebtorôscurrentfinancialposition,adjustedfor factorsthatarespecific

to thedebtors,generaleconomicconditionsof the industryin which thedebtorsoperateandan assessmentof both the currentaswell asthe forecast

directionof conditionsat the reportingdate.The Companyhasrecogniseda lossallowanceof 100%againstall receivablesover 365 dayspastdue,

becausehistoricalexperiencehasindicatedthat thesereceivablesaregenerallynot recoverable.Therehasbeenno changein theestimationtechniques

or significantassumptionsmadeduringthecurrentreportingyear.TheCompanywritesoff a tradereceivablewhenthereis informationindicatingthat

thedebtoris in severefinancialdifficulty andthereis no realisticprospectof recovery,e.g.whenthedebtorhasbeenplacedunderliquidation or has

enteredinto bankruptcyproceedings,or whenthe tradereceivablesareover two yearspastdue,exceptwherethereis adequatesecurity.Noneof the

tradereceivablesthathavebeenwritten off aresubjectto enforcementactivities.Tradereceivablesareconsideredto bepastduewhentheyexceedthe

credit period granted. Note 31 explains more about the impairment of financial assets.

In thecurrentyear,themanagementhavenot madeanysignificantor critical judgments in applyingaccountingpoliciesthatwould havesignificant

effects on the amounts recognised in these financial statements. 

In applying theCompanyôsaccountingpolicies, the directorsare requiredto makejudgements(other than thoseinvolving estimations)that havea

significantimpacton theamountsrecognisedandto makeestimatesandassumptionsaboutthecarryingamountsof assetsandliabilities that arenot

readilyapparentfrom othersources.Theestimatesandassociatedassumptionsarebasedon historicalexperienceandotherfactorsthatareconsidered

to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Theestimatesandunderlyingassumptionsarereviewedon anongoingbasis.Revisionsto estimatesarerecognizedin theyearin whuchtheestimates

are revised, if the revision affects only that year, or in the year of the revision and future years, if the revision affects both current and future year.

Critical judgements in applying the Companyôs accounting policies
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MRS Oil Nigeria Plc.

CƛƴŀƴŎƛŀƭ {ǘŀǘŜƳŜƴǘǎς ол WǳƴŜ нлно

Notes to the financial statements

4 Significant accounting policies

(a) Foreign currency transactions

(b) Financial instruments

(i)  Recognition and initial measurement

Classification of financial assets

Debt instruments that meet the following conditions are measured subsequently at amortised cost:

Å The financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flow

Debt instruments that meet the following conditions are measured subsequently at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI):

Å The financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling the financial assets

(i) Amortised cost and effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest income over the relevant period

(ii) Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL. Specifically

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the Companyôs statement of financial position when the Company becomes a party to the contractual 

provisions of the instrument.

Å The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount 

outstanding

Å The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount 

outstanding

The amortised cost of a financial asset is the amount at which the financial asset is measured at initial recognition minus the principal repayments, plus the cumulative 

amortisation using the effective interest method of any difference between that initial amount and the maturity amount, adjusted for any loss allowance. The gross 

carrying amount of a financial asset is the amortised cost of a financial asset before adjusting for any loss allowance

For financial assets other than purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets (i.e. assets that are credit�impaired on initial recognition), the effective interest 

rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, 

transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) excluding expected credit losses, through the expected life of the debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter 

period, to the gross carrying amount of the debt instrument on initial recognition. For purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets, a credit-adjusted effective 

interest rate is calculated by discounting the estimated future cash flows, including expected credit losses, to the amortised cost of the debt instrument on initial 

recognition.

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presentedin thesefinancial statementsexceptwhere

otherwise indicated.

Transactionsdenominatedin foreign currenciesare translatedand recordedin Nigerian Naira at the spot ratesas of the dateof the transaction.

Monetaryassetsandliabilities denominatedin foreigncurrenciesat thereportingdatearetranslatedto thefunctionalcurrencyat theratesof exchange

prevailingat thatdate.Non-monetaryitemsthataremeasuredbasedon historicalcostin a foreigncurrencyaretranslatedat theexchangerateon the

date of the transaction.

Foreign currency differences arising on translation are recognized in profit or loss within the administrative expenses.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value, except for trade receivables that do not have a significant financing 

component which are measured at transaction price. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and 

financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of 

the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial 

assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are 

purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame established by regulation or convention in the marketplace. 

All recognised financial assets are measured subsequently in their entirety at either amortised cost or fair value, depending on the classification of the 

financial assets.

Å Investments in equity instruments are classified as at FVTPL, unless the Company designates an equity investment that is neither held for trading nor a contingent 

consideration arising from a business combination as at FVTOCI on initial recognition (see (iii) above

Å Debt instruments that do not meet the amortised cost criteria or the FVTOCI criteria are classified as at FVTPL. In addition, debt instruments that meet either the 

amortised cost criteria or the FVTOCI criteria may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a 

measurement or recognition inconsistency (so called óaccounting mismatchô) that would arise from measuring assets or liabilities or recognising the gains and losses on 

them on different bases. The Company has not designated any debt instruments as at FVTP

Impairment of financial asset

The Company recognises a loss allowance for expected credit losses on investments in debt instruments that are measured at amortised cost or at FVTOCI, trade 

receivables and contract assets. The amount of expected credit losses is updated at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition of the 

respective financial instrument. The Company always recognises lifetime expected credit losses (ECL) for trade receivables, contract assets and lease receivables. The 

expected credit losses on these financial assets are estimated using a provision matrix based on the Companyôs historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that 

are specific to the debtors, general economic conditions and an assessment of both the current as well as the forecast direction of conditions at the reporting date, 

including time value of money where appropriate. If the credit risk on the financial instrument has not increased significantly since initial recognition, the Company 

measures the loss allowance for that financial instrument at an amount equal to 12-month ECL.
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MRS Oil Nigeria Plc.

CƛƴŀƴŎƛŀƭ {ǘŀǘŜƳŜƴǘǎς ол WǳƴŜ нлно

Notes to the financial statements

(c)

(d) Property, plant and equipment

i Recognition and measurement

ii Subsequent expenditure

iii Depreciation

The estimated useful lives for the current and comparative years are as follows:

Land and Buildings:

Not depreciated

10  to 25 years

10 to 20 years

5 years 

4  to 10 years

3 years

5 years

 Financial  liabilities  are  classified  as  measured  at  amortised  cost  using  the  effective  interest method. Interest expense and foreign exchange 

gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is also recognised in profit or loss.

(iii) Derecognition

Financial assets

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the  financial  asset  expire,  or  it  transfers  the  rights  

to  receive  the  contractual  cash  flows  in  a transaction in which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are 

transferred or in which the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and it does not retain control 

of the financial asset.

Financial liabilities ï Classification, subsequent measurement and gains and losses 

If significantpartsof anitem of property,plantandequipmenthavedifferentusefullives, theyareaccountedfor asseparateitems(majorcomponents)

of property, plant and equipment.

Gainsandlosseson disposalof an item of property,plantandequipmentaredeterminedby comparingthe proceedsfrom disposalwith thecarrying

amount of property, plant and equipment, and are recognized net within other income in profit or loss.

Thecostof replacingapartof an item of property,plantandequipmentis recognizedin thecarryingamountof theitem if it is probablethatthefuture

economicbenefitsembodiedwithin thepartwill flow to theCompanyandits costcanbemeasuredreliably.Thecarryingamountof thereplacedpart

is derecognized. The costs of the day-to-day servicing of property, plant and equipment are recognized in profit or loss as incurred.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the depreciable amount, which is the cost of an asset, or other amount substituted for cost, less its residual value. 

Depreciationis recognizedin profit or loss on a straight-linebasisover the estimateduseful lives of eachpart of an item of property,plant and

equipment which reflects the expected pattern of consumption of the future economic benefits embodied in the asset.

   -   Freehold Land 

Financial liabilities

The Company derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled, or expire. The Company also derecognises 

a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash flows of the modified liability are substantially different, in which case a new financial 

liability based on the modified terms is recognised at fair value.

On   derecognition   of   a   financial   liability,   the   difference   between   the   carrying   amount extinguished and the consideration paid (including 

any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed) is recognised in profit or loss.

(iv) OffsettingFinancial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the statement of financial position when, and only when, the 

Company currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and it intends either to settle them on a net basis or to realise the asset and 

settle the liability simultaneously.

Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses.

Costincludesexpenditurethat is directly attributableto theacquisitionof theasset.Property,plantandequipmentunderconstructionaredisclosedas

capitalwork-in-progress.The costof self-constructedassetsincludesthe costof materialsand direct labour,any other costsdirectly attributableto

bringing the assetsto a working condition for their intendeduseincluding, whereapplicable,the costsof dismantlingand removingthe itemsand

restoring the site on which they are located and borrowing costs on qualifying assets.

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted if appropriate. 

Capitalwork-in-progressis not depreciated.The attributablecostof eachassetis transferredto the relevantassetcategoryimmediatelythe assetis

available for use and depreciated accordingly.

   -    Buildings 

Plant and Machinery

Furniture and Fittings

Automotive equipment  

Computer equipment 

Office equipment 

MON Plc Q2, 2023 - 11

 




MRS Oil Nigeria Plc.
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Notes to the financial statements

(f) Intangible assets

(i) Recognition and measurement

(ii) Subsequent expenditure

(iii) Amortisation of  intangible assets 

(g) Leases

i As a lessee

Intangibleassetsthat areacquiredby the Companyandhavefinite usefullives aremeasuredat cost lessaccumulatedamortisationandaccumulated

impairment losses. 

TheCompanyôsintangibleassetswith finite usefullives compriseacquiredsoftware.Thesearecapitalisedon thebasisof acquisitioncostsaswell as

costs incurred to bring the assets to use.

Subsequentexpenditureis capitalizedonly whenit increasesthefutureeconomicbenefitsembodiedin thespecificintangibleassetto which it relates.

All other expenditure is recognized in profit or loss as incurred.

Amortisationis calculatedover thecostof theasset,or otheramountsubstitutedfor cost,lessits residualvalue.Amortisationis recognizedin profit or

losson a straight-linebasisover the estimateduseful lives of intangibleassetsfrom the datethat they areavailablefor use,sincethis mostclosely

reflects the expected pattern of consumption of the future economic benefits embodied in the asset. 

The Companyassesseswhethera contractis, or contains,a lease,at inceptionof the contract.The Companyrecognisesa right-of-useassetand a

correspondingleaseliability with respectto all leasearrangementsin which it is the lessee,exceptfor short-termleases(definedasleaseswith a lease

term of 12 monthsor less)andleasesof low valueassets(suchastabletsandpersonalcomputers,small itemsof office furnitureandtelephones).For

theseleases,the Companyrecognisesthe leasepaymentsas an operatingexpenseon a straight-linebasisover the term of the leasenlessanother

systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased assets are consumed. 

The leaseliability is initially measuredat thepresentvalueof the leasepaymentsthatarenot paidat thecommencementdate,discountedby usingthe

rate implicit in the lease. If this rate cannot be readily determined, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise the following:

ï fixed payments, including in-substance fixed payments;

ï Payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the exercise of an option to terminate the lease

ï amounts expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee; and

ïthe exerciseprice under a purchaseoption that the Company is reasonablycertain to exercise,leasepaymentsin anoptionalrenewalperiod

if the Companyis reasonablycertainto exercise an extension option, and penalties for early termination of a lease unless the Companyis

reasonably certain not to terminate early.

The lease liability is measuredat amortised cost using the effective interest method. It is remeasuredwhenthereis a changein future lease

paymentsarising from a changein an index or rate, if thereis a changein theCompanyôsestimateof the amountexpectedto be payableunder a

residual value guarantee,if the Company changesits assessmentof whether it will exercisea purchase,extensionor terminationoption or if

there is a revised in-substance fixed lease payment.

Amortisationmethods,useful lives andresidualvaluesarereviewedat eachreportingdateandadjustedif appropriate.The usefullife for computer

software is 3 years.

TheCompanyhasappliedIFRS 16 in reportingassetsunderleasein which caseRight of Useassetsandcorrespondingleaseliabilities is recognised

accordingly. The details of accounting policies under IFRS 16 are disclosed hereunder.

The incrementalborrowingratedependson the term,currencyandstartdateof theleaseandis determinedbasedon a seriesof inputsincluding: therisk-

free rate basedon governmentbond rates;a country-specificrisk adjustment;a credit risk adjustmentbasedon bond yields; and an entity-specific

adjustmentwhenthe risk profile of theentity thatentersinto the leaseis different to thatof theCompanyandthe leasedoesnot benefitfrom a guarantee

from the Company

Whenthe leaseliability is remeasuredin this way, a correspondingadjustmentis madeto thecarryingamountof theright-of-useasset,or is recorded

in profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.
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The right-of-use assets are presented as a separate line in the statement of financial position.

(h) Inventories

The bases of costing inventories are as follows:

Cost Basis

Weighted average cost

(i) Impairment

i Non-derivative financial assets 

Objective evidence that financial assets maybe impaired includes

·      default or delinquency by a debtor;

·      restructuring of an amount due to the Company on terms that the Company would not consider otherwise;

·      indications that a debtor or issuer will enter bankruptcy;

·      adverse changes in the payment status of borrowers or issuers;

·      the disappearance of an active market for a security; or

·      observable data indicating that there is measurable decrease in expected cash flows from a Company of financial assets

The Company presentsright-of-use assetsthat do not meet the definition of investmentpropertyin óproperty,plant andequipmentôin the

statement of financial position.

The right-of-use assets comprise the initial measurement of the corresponding lease liability, lease payments made at or before the commencement day, less any lease 

incentives received and any initial direct costs. They are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses

Whenever the Company incurs an obligation for costs to dismantle and remove a leased asset, restore the site on which it is located or restore the underlying asset to the 

condition required by the terms and conditions of the lease, a provision is recognised and measured under IAS 37. To the extent that the costs relate to a right-of-use 

asset, the costs are included in the related right-of-use asset, unless those costs are incurred to produce inventories

Right-of-use assets are depreciated over the shorter period of lease term and useful life of the right-of-use asset. If a lease transfers ownership of the underlying asset or 

the cost of the right-of-use asset reflects that the Company expects to exercise a purchase option, the related right-of-use asset is depreciated over the useful life of the 

underlying asset. The depreciation starts at the commencement date of the lease

Inventoriesare measuredat the lower of cost and net realisablevalue. The cost of inventoriesincludes expenditureincurred in acquiring the

inventories,incurredin bringingthemto their existinglocationandconditionbut excludesreimburseablecostsor othercostssubsequentlyrecoverable

by theCompany.In thecaseof manufactured/blendedinventoriesandwork in progress,costincludesan appropriateshareof productionoverheads

based on normal operating capacity.

Product Type

a) Refined petroleum products 

    AGO, ATK, PMS, LPG, LUBES

b) Packaging materials,

     lubricants and greases 

Net realisablevalue is the estimatedselling price in the ordinary courseof business,less the estimatedcostsof completionand selling expenses.

Inventory values are adjusted for obsolete, slow-moving or defective items.

Financial assets not classified at fair value through profit or loss are assessed at each reporting date to determine whether there is objective evidence of 

impairment.
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ii

(j) Employee benefits

i Defined contribution plan

ii Other long-term employee benefits

iii Terminal benefits

iv Short-term employee benefits

Non-financial assets

At eachreportingdate, the Companyreviews the carrying amountsof its non-financialassets(other than inventoriesand deferredtax assets)to

determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the assetôs recoverable amount is estimated.

For impairment testing, assetsare Companyedtogether into the smallest Companyof assetsthatgeneratescash flows from continuing use

that  are  largely  independent  of  the  cash  flows  of other assets or cash generating units (CGUs).

Therecoverableamountof anassetor cash-generatingunit is thegreaterof its valuein useandits fair valuelesscoststo sell.Valuein useis basedon

theestimatedfuturecashflows, discountedto their presentvalue using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current marketassessmentsof the

time value of money and the risks specific to the asset or CGU.

Terminationbenefitsareexpensedat the earlier of when the Companycan no longer withdraw the offer of thosebenefitsand when the Company

recognisescostsfor a restructuring.If thebenefitsarenotexpectedto besettledwholly within 12 monthsof theendof thereportingyear,thentheyare

discounted.

An  impairment  loss  is  recognized  if  the  carrying  amount  of  an  asset  or  CGU  exceeds  its estimated recoverable amount.

Impairmentlossesarerecognisedin profit or loss.An impairmentlossis reversedonly to theextentthat the asset'scarryingamountdoesnot exceed

the carrying amount that would have been  determined,  net  of  depreciation  or  amortisation,  if  no  impairment  loss  had  been recognised.

A definedcontributionplan is a post-employmentbenefit plan (pensionfund) underwhich the Companypaysfixed contributionsinto a separate

entity.TheCompanyhasno legalor constructiveobligationsto payfurthercontributionsif thefund doesnothold sufficientassetsto payall employees

the benefits relating to employee service in the current and prior years.

In line with theprovisionsof thePensionReformAct 2014,theCompanyhasinstituteda definedcontributionpensionschemefor its permanentstaff.

Employeescontribute8% eachof their basicsalary,transportandhousingallowancesto theFundon a monthlybasis.TheCompanyôscontributionis

10%of eachemployeeôsbasicsalary,transportandhousingallowances.Staff contributionsto theschemearefundedthroughpayroll deductionswhile

the Companyôs contribution is recognised in profit or loss as employee benefit expense in the years during which services are rendered by employees.

TheCompanyôsotherlong-termemployeebenefitsrepresentsa Long ServiceAward schemeinstitutedfor all permanentemployees.TheCompanyôs

obligationsin respectof this schemeis the amountof future benefitsthat employeeshaveearnedin return for their servicein the currentandprior

years.The benefit is discountedto determineits presentvalue.The discountrateis the yield at the reportingdateon FederalGovernmentof Nigeria

issuedbondsthat havematurity datesapproximatingthe term of theCompanyôsobligation.The calculationis performedusing the ProjectedUnit

Credit method.Remeasurementsarerecognisedin profit or lossin theyear in which theyarise.Although the schemewasnot funded,theCompany

ensured that adequate arrangements were in place to meet its obligations under the scheme.

Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the related service is provided.

A liability is recognizedfor the amountexpectedto be paid under short-termcashbonusesif the Companyhas a presentlegal or constructive

obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the employee, and the obligation can be estimated reliably.

TheCompanyconsidersevidenceof impairmentfor theseassetsat bothan individual assetandcollectivelevel. All individually significantassetsare

individually assessedfor impairment.Thosefoundnot to be impairedarethencollectivelyassessedfor anyimpairmentthathasbeenincurredbut not

yet individually identified.Assetsthatarenot individually significantarecollectivelyassessedfor impairment.Collectiveassessmentis carriedout by

Companying together assets with similar risk characteristics

In assessing collective impairment, the Company uses historical information on timing of recoveries and the amount of loss incurred, and makes 

adjustment if current economic and credit conditions are such that the actual losses are likely to be greater or less than suggested by historical trends. 

An impairment loss is calculated as the difference between an asset's carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows 

discounted at the assetôs original effective interest rate. Losses are recognized in profit or loss and reflected in an allowance account. When the 

Company considers that there are no realistic prospects of recovery of the asset, the relevant amounts are written off. If the amount of impairment loss 

subsequently decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, then the previously 

recognised impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss. 
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(k) Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Assets

(l)

(m) 

Provisions

Provisionscompriseliabilities for which theamountandtiming areuncertain.Theyarisefrom litigation andotherrisks.A provisionis recognizedif,

asa resultof a pastevent,theCompanyhasa presentlegalor constructiveobligationthatcanbeestimatedreliably, andit is probablethatanoutflow

of economicbenefitswill berequiredto settletheobligation.Provisionsaredeterminedby discountingtheexpectedfuturecashflows at a pre-taxrate

that reflects current market assessmentsof the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The unwindingof the discountis

recognized as finance cost.

Contingent liabilities

A contingentliability is a possibleobligationthatarisesfrom pasteventsandwhoseexistencewill be confirmed only by the occurrenceor non-

occurrenceof one or more uncertain future eventsnot wholly within the control of the company,or a presentobligation that arisesfrom past

eventsbut is not recognisedbecauseit is not probable that an outflow of resourcesembodyingeconomicbenefits will be required to settle

the  obligation;  or  the  amount  of  the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.

Contingent liabilities are only disclosed and not recognised as liabilities in the statement of financial position.

Contingent assets

In respect of Lubricants, the recognition of revenue is done upon customers taking control of the product which is usually when the products are 

picked up from our various warehouses. The warehouse officers do the shipment, customer account is impacted and the revenue account is also 

credited.

Finance income and finance costs

The Company's finance income and finance costs include:

- interest income;

- interest expense;

- interest on lease laibilities

- Unwinding of the discount on provisions.

Interestincomeor expensesare recognizedin profit or loss using the effective interestmethod.The 'effective interestrate' is the rate that exactly

discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument to:

ï the gross carrying amount of the financial asset; or

ï the amortised cost of the financial liability.

In calculating interest income and expense,the effective interest rate is applied to the grosscarryingamountof theasset(whentheassetis not

credit-impaired)or to the amortisedcostof the liability. However, for financial assetsthat have become credit-impaired subsequentto initial

recognition, interest income is calculatedby applying the effective interest rate to theamortisedcost of the financial asset.If the assetis

no longer credit-impaired,then thecalculation of interest income reverts to the gross basis. Financecosts that are directlyattributableto the

acquisition,constructionor productionof a qualifying assetarecapitalisedaspart of the related assets.Financecosts that are directly attributable

to  the  importation  of Premium Motor Spirit (PMS) and other products are classified as part of the product landing cost.

A contingentassetis a possibleassetwhoseexistencewill be confirmedonly by the occurrenceor non-occurrenceof oneor moreuncertainfuture

eventsnot wholly within the controlof the company.Contingentassetsusuallyarisefrom unplannedor otherunexpectedeventsthat give rise to the

possibility of an inflow of economic benefits to the company.

Contingent assetsare not recognisedin financial statementssince this may result in the recognitionof incomethat may neverbe realised.

However, the companyis requiredto disclosea brief description of the nature of the contingent assetsat the reporting date. When the

realisationof incomeis virtually certain,thenthe relatedassetis not a contingentassetandits recognition is appropriate. Contingent assets are

assessedcontinually to ensure thatdevelopmentsareappropriatelyreflectedin the financialstatements.If it hasbecomevirtually certain that an

inflow of economic benefits will arise, the assetand the related income arerecognisedin the financial statementsof the periodin which the

change occurs.

Revenue

Revenueis measuredbasedon the considerationspecifiedin a contractwith a customer.TheCompanyrecognisesrevenuewhenit transferscontrol

over its products to a customer. 

Revenuerecognitiondependson whetherthe customertook delivery of the productsdirectly from our depotusing their own delivery vehiclesor

whethertheCompanydeliveredto thecustomerusingthe thrid party transporters.For the former, revenueis recognizedwhenthecustomerpicksup

theproductsfrom theCompany'sdepotsandthelatter,whendeliveryis made; thecustomerdoesthedeliveryconfirmationon portalhence,revenueis

recognised at that point in time.

If it is probablethatdiscountswill begrantedandtheamountcouldbemeasuredreliably, thenthediscountis recognisedasa reductionof revenueas

the sales are recognised.

Any payment received from customers for which the product has not been delivered is not recognized as revenue but contract liability penidng when the 

product is delivered.

Foreign currency gains and losses are reported on a net basis.
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(n) Income tax

i Current tax   

ii Deferred tax   

iii Minimum tax

(m) Withholding tax receivables

The Companyhad determinedthat interest and penaltiesrelating to income taxes, includinguncertaintax treatments,do notmeetthedefinition

of income taxes, and therefore are accounted for under IAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets.

Currenttax is theexpectedtax payableor receivableon thetaxableincomeor lossfor theyear,usingtax ratesstatutorilyenactedat thereportingdate,

andanyadjustmentto tax payablein respectof previousyears.TheCompanyis subjectto theCompaniesIncomeTax Act (CITA), TertiaryEducation

TrustFund(EstablishmentAct 2011). Tertiaryeducationtax is assessedat 2.5%of assessableprofit while Companyincometax is assessedat 30%of

taxable profit.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset only if certain criteria are met.

The Company is subject to the CompaniesIncome Tax Act (CITA). Total amount of tax payableunderCITA is determinedbasedon the

higherof two componentsnamely,CompanyIncomeTax (basedon taxableincome(or loss)for theyear);andMinimum tax (determinedas0.50%of

the qualifying company's turnover less franked investment income).

Wheretheminimum tax chargeis higherthantheCompanyIncomtTax (CIT), a hybrid tax situationexists.In this situation,theCIT is recognisedin

the income tax expense line in the profit or loss.

Withholding taxes(WHT) areadvancepaymentsof incometaxesdeductedby theCompanyôscustomersat sourceuponpayment.WHT receivables

are measured at cost.

The Companyutilizes WHT creditsagainstcurrenttax liabilities if, and only if, the entity hasa legally enforceableright to set off the recognised

amounts,and it intendseither to settleon a net basis,or to realisethe assetandsettlethe liability simultaneously.The tax assetis reviewedat each

reporting date and written down to the extent that it is no longer probable that future economic benefit would be realized.

Tax asset written down are recognized in profit or loss as income tax expense.

Åtemporarydifferencesrelatedto investmentsin subsidiaries,associatesandjoint arrangementsto theextentthat the Companyis ableto control the

timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that they will not reverse in the foreseeable future; and

Deferredtax is recognisedin respectof temporarydifferencesbetweenthe carryingamountsof assetsandliabilities for financial reportingpurposes

and the amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax is not recognised for:

Åtemporarydifferenceson the initial recognitionof assetsor liabilities in a transactionthat is not a businesscombinationand that affectsneither

accounting nor taxable profit or loss;

Deferredtax assetsarerecognisedfor unusedtax losses,unusedtax creditsanddeductibletemporarydifferencesto the extentthat it is probablethat

future taxableprofits will beavailableagainstwhich theycanbeused.Futuretaxableprofits aredeterminedbasedon the reversalof relevanttaxable

temporarydifferences.If theamountof taxabletemporarydifferencesis insufficient to recogniseadeferredtaxassetin full, thenfuturetaxableprofits,

adjusted for reversals of existing temporary differences, are considered, based on the business plans approved by the board of the Company.

Deferredtax assetsarereviewedat eachreportingdateandarereducedto the extentthat it is no longerprobablethat the relatedtax benefitwill be

realised; such reductions are reversed when the probability of future taxable profits improves.

Deferredtax is measuredat the tax ratesthat are expectedto be applied to temporarydifferenceswhen they reverse,using tax ratesenactedor

substantiallyenactedat the reportingdate.The measurementof deferredtax reflects the tax consequencesthat would follow from the mannerthe

company expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Incometax expensecomprisescurrentanddeferredtax. Currenttax anddeferredtax arerecognizedin profit or lossexceptto theextentthat it relates

to items recognized directly in equity or in other comprehensive income.
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(n) Earnings per share (EPS)

(o) Segment reporting

i.

ii

iii

(p) Statement of cash flows

(q) Joint arrangement

4 New and amended IFRS standards

4.1 New and amended IFRS standards that are effective for the current year

i

Segment results that are reported to the Managing Director include items directly attributable to a segment as well as those that can be allocated on a 

reasonable basis. 

TheCompanyôsjoint arrangementis in respectof its interestsin joint aviationfacilities heldwith otherparties.TheseFinancialStatementsincludethe

Companyôsshareof assets,liabilities, revenueand expensesof the joint arrangement.The Companycapitalizes,recogniseasasset and depreciate

accordinglyits shareof Capitalbudgetof jointly ownedfacility. For operatingexpensesthisissharedbasedon eachpartner'svolumesold is recognised

as profit or loss items.

The company has identify three operating segments which are:

The Companypresentsbasicanddiluted earningsper share(EPS)datafor its ordinaryshares.BasicEPSis calculatedby dividing the profit or loss

attributableto ordinaryshareholdersof theCompanyby theweightedaveragenumberof ordinarysharesoutstandingduringtheyear,adjustedfor own

sharesheld. Diluted EPS is determinedby adjustingthe profit or loss attributableto ordinary shareholdersand the weightedaveragenumberof

ordinary shares outstanding, adjusted for own shares held, for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.

An operatingsegmentis a componentof the Companythat engagesin businessactivities from which it may earnrevenuesandincur expenses.All

operatingsegmentsôresultsare reviewedregularlyby the ManagingDirector to makedecisionsaboutresourcesto be allocatedto the segmentand

assess its performance, and for which discrete financial information is available.

Retail/Commercial & Industrial - this segment is responsible for the sale and distribution of refined products to retail and industrial 

customers.

Aviation - this segment involves in the sales of Aviation Turbine Kerosene (ATK).

Lubricants - this sells lubricants and greases.

Thestatementof cashflows is preparedusingtheindirectmethod.Changesin statementof financialpositionitemsthathavenot resultedin cashflows

havebeeneliminatedfor thepurposeof preparingthestatement.Dividendspaid to ordinaryshareholdersareincludedin financingactivities.Finance

costs paid is also included in financing activities while finance income is included in investing activities. 

In the currenryear,the Companyhasadopteda numberof amendmentsto IFRS Accountingstandardsthat aremandatorilyeffectivefor an accounting

period that beginson or after 1 January2023 . Their adoptionhasnot hadany materialimpacton the disclosuresor on the amounts reportedin these

financial statements.

In May 2017, the IASB issued IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts,a comprehensive new accounting standard for insurance contracts covering recognition and measurement, 

resentation and disclosure. Once effective, IFRS 17 will replace IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts.In June 2020, the IASB issued amendments to IFRS 17. These amendments 

included changing the effective date to 2023.IFRS 17 applies to all types of insurance contracts (i.e., life, non-life, direct insurance and re-insurance), regardless of the 

type of entities that issue them, as well as to certain guarantees and financial instruments with discretionary participation features. The overall objective of IFRS 17 is to 

provide an ccounting model for insurance contracts that is more useful and consistent for insurers.

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023.
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ii

iii

iv

v Annual Improvements to IFRS Accounting Standards 2018-2020 Cycle

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

IAS 41 Agriculture

4.2 New and revised IFRS Standards in issue but not yet effective

Effective Date

Lease Liability  1 January 2024

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28

 1 January 2024

Amendments to IAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current  1 January 2024

IFRS 1 First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards

IFRS 16 Leases

The amendment removes the illustration of the reimbursement of leasehold improvements.

The amendmentsclarify that accountingestimatesare monetaryamountsin the financial statementssubject to measurementuncertainty.The

amendmentsalsoclarify the relationshipbetweenaccountingpoliciesandaccountingestimatesby specifyingthata companydevelopsan accounting

estimate to achieve the objective set out by an accounting policy.

This ammendmentclarifieshow companiesaccountfor deferredtaxeson certaintransactions,suchasleasesanddecommissioningobligations,with a

focus on reducing diversity in practice.

Theamendmentclarifiesthat in applyingthe'10 percent'testto assesswhetherto derecognisea financial liability, anentity includesonly feespaidor

received between the entity (the borrower) and the lender, including fees paid or received by either the entity or the lender on the otherôs behalf.

Definition of Accounting Estimates (Amendments to IAS 8, Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors)

Theamendmentclarifieshow companiesdistinguishchangesin accountingpoliciesfrom changesin accountingestimates,with a primaryfocuson the

definition and guidanceon accountingestimates.The distinction betweenthe two is importantbecausechangesin accountingpolicies are applied

retrospectively, whereas changes in accounting estimates are applied prospectively.

TheCompanyhasadoptedtheamendmentsincludedin theAnnualImprovementsto IFRSAccountingStandards2018-2020Cyclefor thefirst time in

the current year. The Annual Improvements include amendments to four standards.

The Company has adopted the amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements, and IFRS Practice Statement 2, Making Materiality judgement  in the current 

year ,which continues the IASBôs clarifications on applying the concept of materiality. These amendments help companies provide useful accounting policy disclosures 

by requiring companies to disclose their material accounting policies instead of their significant accounting policies, clarifying that accounting policies related to 

immaterial transactions, other events or conditions are themselves immaterial and do not need to be disclosed; and clarifying that not all accounting policies that relate to 

material transactions, other events or conditions are themselves material.The IASB also amended IFRS Practice Statement 23 to include guidance and examples on 

applying materiality to accounting policy disclosures.

Disclosure of Accounting Policies (Amendments to IAS 1, Presentation of Financial Statements, and IFRS Practice Statement 2, Making 

Materiality Judgements)

Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction (Amendments to IAS 12, Income Taxes),

The amendmentsnarrowthe scopeof the initial recognitionexemptionso companieswill needto recognizea deferredtax assetanda deferredtax

liability arising from transactions that give rise to equal and offsetting temporary differences.

The Company has not applied the following new and revised IFRS accounting standards  that have been issued  but are not yet effective:

The amendmentprovidesadditional relief to a subsidiarywhich becomesa first-time adopter later than its parent in respectof accountingfor

cumulativetranslationdifferences.As a resultof theamendment,a subsidiarythatusestheexemptionin IFRS1:D16(a)cannow alsoelectto measure

cumulativetranslationdifferencesfor all foreign operationsat the carrying amountthat would be included in the parentôsconsolidatedfinancial

statements,basedon theparentôsdateof transitionto IFRS AccountingStandards,if no adjustmentsweremadefor consolidationproceduresandfor

theeffectsof thebusinesscombinationin which theparentacquiredthesubsidiary.A similar electionis availableto anassociateor joint venturethat

uses the exemption in IFRS 1:D16(a)

The amendment removes the requirement in IAS 41 for entities to exclude cash flows for taxation when measuring fair value. This aligns the fair value measurement 

in IAS 41 with the requirements of IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement to use internally consistent cash flows and discount rates and enables preparers to determine 

whether to use pre-tax or post-tax cash flows and discount rates for the most appropriate fair value measurement

New standards/Amendments

Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback ï Amendments to 

IFRS 16

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or 

Joint Venture

Description

The directors do not expect that the adoption of the Standards listed above will have a material impact on the financial statements of the Company in the next 

financial year.
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5 Revenue
30 Jun. 2023  30 June 2022 

ô000 ô000

Premium Motor Spirit (PMS)            49,763,194           35,004,940 

Automotive Gas Oil (AGO)              5,765,915             2,155,921 

Aviation Turbine Kerosene (ATK)              1,985,583             3,454,749 

Lubricants and Greases              2,093,704             1,940,257 

Liquidified Petroleum Gas (LPG)                   40,608                105,071 

59,648,894           42,660,939 

6 Other income 30 Jun. 2023  30 June 2022 

ô000 ô000

Rental and lease income (Note 6(a)) 2,359                   2,376                   

Sundry income (Note 6(b)) 30,351                 3,672                   

Gain on sale of property, plant & equipment 9,126                   -                      

Income on storage services 19,483                 15,848                 

Surplus on Expired ROU Assets -                       15,570                 

                  61,319                  37,467 

a)

b)

7 Expenses by function 30 Jun. 2023  30 June 2022 

ô000 ô000

Cost of sales (Note 8) 50,738,133 39,944,683          

Selling and distribution expenses (Note 9) 209,884 191,535               

Administrative expenses (Note 10) 4,923,488 2,202,939            

55,871,505 42,339,156          

8 Cost of sales 30 Jun. 2023  30 June 2022 

ô000 ô000

Premium Motor Spirit (PMS)            40,878,556           32,350,513 

Automotive Gas Oil (AGO)              5,466,087             1,938,615 

Aviation Turbine Kerosene (ATK)              1,867,064             3,057,111 

Lubricants and greases              1,785,631             1,864,560 

Liquidified Petroleum Gas (LPG)                   35,546                  98,024 

Freight expense                 705,249                635,860 

50,738,133           39,944,683 

9 Selling and distribution expenses

30 Jun. 2023  30 June 2022 

ô000 ô000

Rental of service stations, buildings and equipment 121,704 88,070                 

Advertising-Selling & Distribution 7,296 34,926                 

Station running expenses 15,545 18,382                 

Amortization expenses on Right of use Assets (Note 30) 65,339 50,158                 

209,884 191,535               

Revenue is recognised at a point in time and sales are mostly made to customers in Nigeria. Information on analysis of revenue by 

category is shown in Note 33. 

Rentaland leaseincomerelatesto incomeearnedon assetsthat areon operatingleasearrangementsto third parties.Assetson

lease include filling stations and related equipment (generators and dispenser pumps).                                                                                                                                                                                                                             

Sundry income represents earnings from insurance claims recoveries,non fuel revenues, recoveries from station uniform and other 

miscellaneouse incomes for the current year. 
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10 Adminstration expenses 30 Jun. 2023  30 June 2022 

ô000 ô000

Depreciation (Note 15(a)) 354,529 328,123               

Amortization of intangible assets (Note 16) 20,996 22                        

Fuel expenses for Office Generators & other admin use 225,490               220,855               

Consultancy expense 54,947                 53,212                 

Maintenance expense 402,372               274,963               

Advertising expenses(Newspaper & Publications) 3,748                   6,884                   

Management fees  (Note 32 (c)) 227,094               214,435               

Directors' remuneration (Note 12(b)(iv)) 9,735                   9,350                   

Employee benefit expense (Note 12 (b)(i)) 275,430               197,847               

Bank Charges 60,889                 62,400                 

Auditor's remuneration (Note 10(a)) 21,181                 16,500                 

Loss on sale of Property, plant and equipment -                       102,662               

Local and international travel 34,515                 11,024                 

Office expenses and supplies 220,907               134,980               

Communication and postage 113,828               101,783               

Insurance premium 75,523                 59,881                 

Contract labour 289,603               316,848               

Licenses and Levies 47,091                 31,636                 

Utilities 9,596                   11,936                 

Subcriptions 30,908                 28,500                 

Board meetings and AGM expenses 4,235                   1,538                   

Security 11,477                 17,509                 

Net foreign exchange loss 2,429,253            

             4,923,488             2,202,939 

(a) Non-audit services paid to the statutory auditors

11 Finance income and finance costs 30 Jun. 2023  30 June 2022 

ô000 ô000

Finance income

Interest income on short-term bank deposits 51,870 18,352                 

Net foreign exchange gain -                                       (27,660)

Total finance income                   51,870                   (9,308)

Finance cost arising from financial liabilities measuured at amortised cost
Interest expense 22,791                 42,914                 

Finance costs - others

Unwind of discount on site restoration provision 19,663                 2,770                   

Interest on lease liability ((Note 30(iii)) 27,514                 27,623                 

Total finance costs                   69,968                  73,307 

Net finance costs                 (18,098)                  82,615 

 

a) Reconciliation of finance cost to statement of cash flows 30 Jun. 2023  30 June 2022 

ô000 ô000

Interest expense                   22,791                  42,914 

Unwind of discount on site restoration provision                   19,663                    2,770 

Ineterest on lease liability                   27,514                  27,623 

Interest income on short-term bank deposits (51,870)                (18,352)               

Amount shown on the statement of cash flows                   18,098                  54,955 

The company did not  engage statutory auditor for Non-audit services during the year
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Analyzed as follows:

30 Jun. 2023  30 June 2022 

ô000 ô000

Interest income included in finance income(Note 8(a)                 (51,870) (18,352)               

Finance cost shown on the Statement of Cash flows                   69,968 73,307                 

                  18,098 54,955                 

12 Profit before income tax 30 Jun. 2023  30 June 2022 

a) Profit before income tax is stated after charging/(crediting): ô000 ô000

Depreciation (Note 15) 354,529               328,123               

Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 16) 20,996                 22                        

Management fees (Note 32(c)) 227,094               214,435               

Director's remuneration (Note 12(b)(iv)) 9,735                   9,350                   

Employee benefit expense (Note 12(b)(i)) 275,430               197,847               

Auditor's remuneration 21,181                 16,500                 

(Reversal)/Impairment of related party receivables (Note 31) (209,280)              -                      

Reversal of impairment on trade receivables (Note 31) (85,236)                47,792                 

Net foreign exchange loss (Note 11) 2,429,253            -                      

30 Jun. 2023  30 June 2022 

Net foreign exchange loss is further broken down as follow: ô000 ô000

Loss on cash and bank balances 44,507                 (119,248)             

Vendor 2,549,895            147,079               

Customers (165,149)              (71)                      

2,429,253                  27,760 

b) Directors and employees

 i) Employee costs during the period comprise: 30 Jun. 2023  30 June 2022 

ô000 ô000

Salaries and wages 224,078 155,805               

Other employee benefits 28,795 25,358                 

Employer's pension contribution 20,941 16,239                 

Other long term employee benefit charge 1,617 446                      

275,430                197,847 

 ii)

30 Jun. 2023  30 June 2022 

Administration 37 27                        

Technical and production 7 9                          

Operations and distribution 29 28                        

Sales and marketing 20 24                        

93                         88 

Number

The average number of full-time persons employed during the period (other than executive directors) was as follows:
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Higher-paid employees of the Company and other than 

iii)

30 Jun. 2023  30 June 2022 

                ô000 ô000

1,000,001   -  2,000,000 0 1                          

2,000,001   -  3,000,000 0 4                          

3,000,001   -  4,000,000 2 10                        

4,000,001   -  5,000,000 15 28                        

5,000,001   -  6,000,000 7 22                        

6,000,001   -  7,000,000 15 13                        

7,000,001   -  8,000,000 15 1                          

8,000,001   -  9,000,000 10 1                          

9,000,001   -  10,000,000 6 2                          

10,000,001   -  Above 23 6                          

93                         88 

iv) 30 Jun. 2023  30 June 2022 

ô000 ô000

Fees                     5,500                    5,500 

Other emoluments                     4,235                    3,850 

                     9,735                    9,350 

The directors' remuneration shown above includes:

Chairman                          -                            -   

Highest paid director                     2,420                    2,420 

                                       

30 Jun. 2023  30 June 2022                  

Nil                                    -                          -   

1,000,001    -   2,000,000                            4                           4 

2,000,001    -   3,000,000                            - 

3,000,001    -   4,000,000                            -                          -   

4,000,001    -   5,000,000                          -                            -   

5,000,001    -   6,000,000                            -                          -   

6,000,001    -   7,000,000                            -                          -   

7,000,001    -   8,000,000                            3                           3 

                           7                           7 

13 Earnings per share (EPS) and Dividend declared per share

a) Basic EPS 30 Jun. 2023  30 June 2022 

Earnings for the period attributable to shareholders  (N'000)              2,310,434                351,813 

Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue (Unit'000)                 342,885                304,786 

Basic earnings per share 6.74                     1.15                     

b) Diluted Earnings per share

c) Dividend declared per share

     Number

Number 

Remuneration for directors of the Company charged to profit or loss account are as follows:

The remunerations of three directors is paid at the group level

Other directors received emoluments  in the following ranges:

The Company had no dilutive ordinary shares to be accounted for in these financial statements. 

No dividend was declaredduring the Period(2022: Nil) on 342,884,707ordinarysharesof 50 kobo each,being the ordinary

shares in issue at the the end of the period (2022: 304,786,406)
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14 Taxation

a) Applicablility of the Finance Act, 2023

 Minimum tax

bi)

ii)

Amounts recognized in profit or loss

30 Jun. 2023  30 June 2022 

ô000 ô000

Current tax expense:

Income tax              1,444,245                106,767 

Tertiary education tax                 156,720                  16,227 

NASENI                     7,788                       840 

Nigeria Police Trust Fund                        156                         17 

1,608,909                           123,851 

Deferred tax (credit)/expense:

Origination and reversal of temporary differences               (804,218)                    9,088 

Income tax expense/(credit)                 804,691                132,939 

c) Reconciliation of effective tax rates

The tax on the Company's profit before tax differs from the theoretical amount as follows:

30 Jun. 

2023

30 June 

2022
30 Jun. 2023  30 June 2022 

% % ô000 ô000

Profit before  tax              3,115,125                484,752 

Income tax using the statutory tax rate 30.00        30.00                          934,537               (145,381)

Impact of tertiary education tax 2.50          2.50                              77,878                    9,692 

Impact of (NASENI) 0.25          0.09                                7,788                       436 

Impact of minimum tax 0.50          2.50                              15,576                  12,115 

Impact of Police Trust Fund 0.01                                 156                          -   

Effect of tax incentives (18.99)       -                            (591,664)                  42,056 

Non deductible expenses 11.57        19.00                          360,420                  92,075 

Difference in CIT rate and TET rate (2.59)                                    -                    12,555 

Tax exempt income

Difference in CIT rate and TET rate

Derecognition of previously recognised taxable difference                  67,623 

Changes in estimates related to prior periods 1.00                               4,848 

Other differences                  36,920 

Total income tax expense in income statement          25.83            52.50                 804,691                132,939 

d) Movement in current tax liability

30 Jun. 2023  31 Dec. 2022 

ô000 ô000

Balance at beginning of the year 917,999                363,517 

Payments during the year               (165,250)                (69,106)

Net charge for the period                          -                            -   

Current tax              1,608,909                623,588 

Withholding tax credit notes utilized (Note 19)               (702,165)                         -   

             1,659,493                917,999 

*CIT- Company Income Tax, TET- Tertiary Education Tax, NASENI-National Agency for Science and Engineering Infrastructure 

The tax charge for the period has been computed after adjusting for certain items of expenditure and income which are not 

deductible or chargeable for tax purposes, and comprises:

The  Company  has  applied  the  provisions  of  the  Companies  Income  Tax  Act that mandates a minimum  tax  assessment,  

where  a  qualifying  taxpayer  does  not  have  a  taxable  profit  which would generate an eventual tax liability when assessed to 

tax.

The Finance Act 2023 became effective on 28th May, 2023 and introduced significant changes to some sections of the Companies 

Income Tax Act (CITA). The Company has applied the CITA related provisions of the Finance Act in these financial statements. 
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e) Recognised deferred tax assets and liabilities

30 Jun. 2023 31 Dec. 2022 30 Jun. 2023 31 Dec. 2022 30 Jun. 2023 31 Dec. 2022

ô000 ô000 ô000 ô000 ô000 ô000

Property, plant and equipment                         -                             -             1,557,172            1,449,372           1,557,172            1,449,372 

Trade receivables          (1,201,091)               (918,124)                      -                          -            (1,201,091)            (918,124)

Unrealized exchange loss             (640,018)               (152,567)                      -                          -               (640,018)            (152,567)

Loss on ROU               (39,624)                          -                         -                101,976               (39,624)             101,976 

       (1,880,733)         (1,070,691)          1,557,172            1,551,348             (323,561)             480,657 

f) Movement in temporary differences during the period

1-Jan-22
Recognised in 

Profit or loss
31-Dec-22

Recognised in 

Profit or loss
30-Jun-23

ô000 ô000 ô000 ô000 ô000

Property, plant and equipment                        -             1,449,372            1,449,372              107,800            1,557,172 

Trade receivables                        -              (918,124)            (918,124)            (282,967)         (1,201,091)

Unrealized exchange loss                        -              (152,567)            (152,567)            (487,451)            (640,018)

Loss on Right of Use Assets                        -                101,976              101,976             (141,600)              (39,624)

                       -                480,657              480,657             (804,218)            (323,561)

Assets Liabilities Net
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15 Property, Plant and Equipment

a) The movement on these accounts was as follows:

Freehold Land Building
Plant & 

Machinery

Automotive 

Equipment

Computer & 

Office 

Equipment

Furniture & 

Fittings

Capital Work 

in Progress

Total

ô000 ô000 ô000 ô000 ô000 ô000 ô000 ô000

Cost

Balance at 1st January 2022         8,088,835         6,692,497        10,341,382          1,270,229            939,161          218,729          477,514               28,028,348 

Additions                9,905            259,038             376,680             265,145              66,568            28,384          467,944                 1,473,664 

Reclassification                     -                  6,017                      -                      -              (6,017)                              -   

Disposals          (271,620)          (458,566)          (247,367)            (96,356)           (14,710)           (1,391)                (1,090,009)

Balance as at 31st December 2022         7,827,120         6,498,985        10,470,695          1,439,018            991,020          245,722          939,442 28,412,002
                        

Cost

Balance at 1st January 2023 7,827,120 6,498,985 10,470,695 1,439,018 991,020 245,722 939,442 28,412,002

Additions              18,068            200,452             291,077               12,000            527,739            23,153       3,679,905                 4,752,394 

Reclassification                     -                        -                        -                      -                      -                                -   

Disposals                     -                        -               (30,677)            (30,188)             (4,124)           (4,156)                     (69,145)

Balance as at 31 December 2023 7,845,188 6,699,437 10,731,095 1,420,830 1,514,635 264,719 4,619,347 33,095,251

                        
Accumulated depreciation and impairment

Balance as at 1st January 2022                     -           2,706,334          8,522,353          1,028,507            836,518          192,082                    -                 13,285,795 

Charge for the year                     -              250,341             275,670               43,084              31,124              8,553                    -                      608,772 

Disposal                     -             (178,864)          (175,094)            (91,538)           (13,692)           (1,332)                   -                     (460,520)

Balance as at 31st December 2022 -                  2,777,811        8,622,929        980,053           853,950          199,303         -                13,434,047              

Accumulated depreciation and impairment

Balance as at 1st January 2023                     -           2,777,811          8,622,929             980,053            853,950          199,303                    -   13,434,047

Charge for the period                     -              145,049             122,302               28,681              51,126              7,370                    -                      354,528 

Disposal                     -                        -               (29,032)            (28,678)             (3,422)           (3,983)                   -                       (65,115)

Balance as at 31 December 2023         2,922,860          8,716,199             980,056            901,654          202,690                    -                 13,723,460 

Carrying amounts

Balance as at 31 December 2023 7,845,188 3,776,576 2,014,895 440,774 612,980 62,028 4,619,347 19,371,788

Balance as at 31 December 2022 7,827,120 3,721,173 1,847,765 458,965 137,069 46,418 939,442 14,977,953

 15 (b) Capital work in progress:

The capital expenditure relates to funds committed to the improvement of our retail stations and other revenue generating unit, including solarization projects that is yet to be completed.
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d) Capital commitments

Capital expenditure commitments at the period end authorised by the Board of Directors comprise:

30 Jun. 2023 31 Dec. 2022

ô000 ô000

Capital commitments                606,283 391,573                         

This relates to some significant capital expenditures incurred on our facilities during the year.

16 Intangible assets  

` 30 Jun. 2023 31 Dec. 2022

ô000 ô000

Cost

Balance as at 1 January 283,560               283,560                         

Additions 149,053               -                                

Balance                432,613                          283,560 

Accumulated amortisation

Balance as at 1 January                283,553                          283,531 

Charge for the Period (Note 10)                  20,996                                   22 

Balance                304,549                          283,553 

Carrying amount                128,064                                     7 

The amortization of accounting software is included in administrative expenses (Note 10)

17 Truck loan receivables

30 Jun. 2023 31 Dec. 2022

ô000 ô000

Gross truck loan receivable                  94,861                          100,030 

Impairment allowance                 (94,861)                        (100,030)

18 Trade and other receivables 

30 Jun. 2023 31 Dec. 2022

ô000 ô000

Trade receivables (Note 18(a))             1,356,394                       1,255,120 

Bridging claims (Note 18(b))             7,680,006                       9,304,199 

DMO holdback (Note 18(c))             1,600,000                       1,600,000 

Receivables from related parties (Note 18(d))             1,834,247                          197,453 

Employee receivables                  31,090                            36,486 

Due from joint arrangement partners (Note 18(g)                                25,698                            18,252 

Receivables from Registrar (Note 18(e))                   23,971                            23,971 

Sundry receivables                  25,948                            12,398 

Total financial assets           12,577,354                     12,447,881 

Non financial assets

Advances paid to suppliers                898,594                       5,583,428 

          13,475,948                     18,031,308 

The Company's exposure to credit risks related to truck loan receivables are disclosed in Note 31(a).

Intangibleassetsrelate to the Company'saccountingsoftwareapplicationpackageand license.The movementon theseaccounts

during the period was as follows:
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a) Trade receivables 30 Jun. 2023 31 Dec. 2022

ô000 ô000

Gross trade receivables 2,754,955            2,738,916

Impairment allowance (1,398,561)           (1,483,796)                    

Net trade receivables             1,356,394                       1,255,120 

b) Bridging Claims 30 Jun. 2023 31 Dec. 2022

ô000 ô000

Gross bridging claims 9,326,598            9,950,791                      

Impairment allowance (Note 32(a)(v)) (1,646,592)           (646,592)                       

Net bridging claims             7,680,006                       9,304,199 

c) DMO Holdback

DMO holdback is comprised of:

30 Jun. 2023 31 Dec. 2022

ô000 ô000

Amount set aside for liabilities owed to government agencies -                      -                                

Amount set aside for liabilities owed to financial institutions 1,600,000            1,600,000                      

            1,600,000                       1,600,000 

d) Due from related parties

30 Jun. 2023 31 Dec. 2022

ô000 ô000

Gross receivable from related parties (Note 32 (e)) 1,984,025            556,511                         

Impairment (149,778)             (359,057)                       

Balance             1,834,247                          197,453 

e) Receivables from Registrar

30 Jun. 2023 31 Dec. 2022

ô000 ô000

Balance at 1st January 23,971                 23,971                           

Balance                  23,971                            23,971 

The Company's exposure to credit risk and currency risks related to trade and other receivables are disclosed in Note 32(a).

In the 2018 financial year, prior to the settlementof outstandingPSF receivablesto the company, the Debt Management

Office (DMO), held back the amountsowed to financialinstitutionsby theCompanyfor directsettlementof thoseliabilities. The

amountheldbackin respectof financialinstitutionswasbasedon courtordersissuedby theFederalHigh Court in Abuja requiring

that the amount be withheld by the DMO for directsettlementto theaffectedfinancialinstitutionsandagencies.Theseliabilities

relateto financingprovided by those financial institutions to the Company for product importation in previousyears. This

amount is receivablein 2023 consequentupon finalization and setllementof liability. The relevant liabilities in respect of

governmentagenciesand financial institutionsareincludedin shorttermborrowings(SeeNote27). TheDMO holdbackis reduced

by actual settlements by the DMO to the respective institutions.

This relates to portion of unclaimed Dividend currently held by the Company Registrars
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g) Due from joint arrangement partners 30 Jun. 2023 31 Dec. 2022

ô000 ô000

Balance at 1st January 18,252                 9,554                             

Movement 7,445                   8,698                             

Balance                  25,698                            18,252 

19 Withholding tax receivables

The movement on the withholding tax receivable account was as follows:

30 Jun. 2023 31 Dec. 2022

ô000 ô000

Balance at 1st January                  11,239 9,747

Additions                729,194                              1,492 

Withholding tax credit note utilised (Note 14(d))               (702,165) -                                    

Balance                  38,268                            11,239 

20 Inventories

30 Jun. 2023 31 Dec. 2022

ô000 ô000

Premium Motor Spirit (PMS) 9,815,380 1,377,310                      

Automotive Gas Oil (AGO) 1,744,118 80,773                           

Aviation Turbine Kerosene (ATK) 2,421,716 417,864                         

Lubricants and greases 882,778 1,420,094                      

Liquidified Petroleum Gas (LPG) 3,952 1,373                             

Low Pour Fuel Oil (LPFO) 4,119                              4,119 

Packaging materials and other sundry items 1,106                            474.10 

          14,873,168                       3,302,008 

30 Jun. 2023 31 Dec. 2022

ô000 ô000

Gross inventory 14,995,087          3,413,364

Inventory write down (Note 20 (a) (121,919)             (111,356)                       

Net inventory           14,873,168                       3,302,008 

(a)

30 Jun. 2023 31 Dec. 2022

ô000 ô000

Balance at 1 January (111,356)             (94,057)                         

Net movement of inventory write down (10,562)               (17,299)                         

Balance (121,919)             (111,356)                       

Paymentsmadeby customersof theCompanyaresubjectto a withholdingtax in accordancewith theNigeriantax laws.Theamount

withheld is available to offset the actual tax liabilities. Based on the current tax laws, these withholding taxes do not expire.

The movement in the allowance for write down in respect of inventories during the period was as follows:
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21 Cash and cash equivalents

30 Jun. 2023 31 Dec. 2022

ô000 ô000

Cash at bank and on hand             2,161,140                       2,905,298 

Short term deposits with banks                           0                          311,148 

Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of financial position             2,161,140                       3,216,445 

Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of cash flows             2,161,140                       3,216,445 

22 Equity

30 Jun. 2023 31 Dec. 2022

ô000 ô000

a) Issued and fully paid: 

At January, 304,786,406 ordinary shares of 50k each 171,442 152,393

Bomus issue of 38,098,301 shares of 50k each 19,049

As at date, 342,884,707ordinary shares of 50k each

Issued and fully allotted: 171,442 171,442 

b) Retained earnings

30 Jun. 2023 31 Dec. 2022

ô000 ô000

Balance at 1 January           18,328,004                     17,030,951 

Profit for the period             2,310,434                       1,316,102 

Value of bonus shares issue                          -                             (19,049)

Balance           20,638,438                     18,328,004 

23 Employee benefit obligations

(a)

30 Jun. 2023 31 Dec. 2022

ô000 ô000

Other long term employee benefits                  10,692                              9,085 

Total employee benefit liabilities 10,692 9,085                             

(b)

The amounts outstanding at the end of the period with respect to employee benefit obligations is shown below:

All ordinarysharesrank equallywith regardto the Company'sresidualassets.Holdersof thesesharesare entitled to dividendsas

declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote per share at general meetings of the Company. 

Other long term employeebenefitscompriselong serviceawardsand it is fundedon a pay-as-you-gobasisby the Company.The

provision was basedon an independentactuarialvaluation performedby HenrePrinslooFRC/2018/NAS/00000018473,of QED

ActuariesNigeria Limited FRC/2018/00000012293.The methodof valuationusedis the projectedunit credit methodand the last

valuation was as at 31 December 2022. 

The Company's exposure to credit risk and currency risks are disclosed in Note 31 (a).
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(c) The movement on the provision for other long term employee benefits is as follows:

30 Jun. 2023 31 Dec. 2022

ô000 ô000

Balance as at 1st January                    9,085                              6,632 

Included in profit or loss:

Current service cost/Provision                    1,608                              1,214 

Past service (income)/cost                          -                                      -   

Interest cost                                 985 

Remeasurement Loss/(gains) 1,016                             

Net charge to profit or loss                    1,608                              3,215 

Benefits paid by the employer (762)                              

Balance                  10,692                              9,085 

(d) Actuarial Assumptions

30 Jun. 2023 31 Dec. 2022

% %

Long-term average discount rate (p.a.) 13.7% 13.2%

Future average pay increase (p.a.) 12.0% 12.0%

Average Duration in years (Long Service Awards) 5 5

Mortality in Service

30 Jun. 2023 31 Dec. 2022

Sample age % %

25 13.2 13.2

30 12.0 12.0

35 9.0 9.0

40 6.0 6.0

45 5 5

Withdrawal from Service 30 Jun. 2023 31 Dec. 2022

Age Band % %

Ò 34 3 3

34-44 5 5

45-55 3 3

56-59 2 2

60 100 100

Key actuarialassumptionsrelating to measurementsof employeebenefitobligationsinvolvesestimatesandassumptions,but is not

consideredto havea risk of materialadjustmentfor the periodending30 June2023as the balanceis not materialto the financial

statements

These assumptions depict managementôs estimate of the likely future experience of the Company.

Principal actuarial assumptions at the reporting date (expressed as weighted averages):

No of deaths in year out of 10,000 lives 

Rates

Dueto unavailabilityof publishedreliabledemographicdatain Nigeria, the demographicassumptionsregardingfuture mortality are

basedon theratespublishedjointly by theInstituteandFacultyof Actuariesin theUK. Thedatawererateddownby oneyearto more

accurately reflect mortality in Nigeria as follows:

It is assumed that all the employees covered by the long service award scheme would retire at age 60 (2022: age 60).
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Sensitivity Analysis

Mortality in Service Long Sevice Award

Sample age % ô000

Discount rate -1% 8,679

+1% 9,530

Salary increase rate -1% 9,562

+1% 8,644

Mortality rate - Age rated down by 1 year -1% 9,064

Age rated up by 1 year +1% 9,104

24 Contract Liabilities

30 Jun. 2023 31 Dec. 2022

ô000 ô000

At 1 January            (2,221,109) (310,771.00)                   

Amount recognised as revenue during the year             1,969,766 118,319.09                    

Customer credit balance ununtilized at year end                 (94,247)                          (71,735)

Advance received from customers at period end            (2,230,477)                     (1,956,921)

Closing            (2,576,066)                     (2,221,109)

(a.)

25 Dividends

(a) Declared dividends

(b) Dividend payable

30 Jun. 2023 31 Dec. 2022

ô000 ô000

At  January                169,851                          169,851 

At Closing 169,851                                        169,851 

(c)

(d)

The Company's exposure to liquidity risk and currency risks are disclosed in Note 31(b).

The dividend was invested in an interest bearing account and included in the short term deposit (Note 21)

 No dividend was declared during the period (2023: nil)

Includedin thedividendpayablebalanceat periodendis anamountof NGN 23.97million (2022:NGN23.97million), which is held

with theCompanyôsregistrar,First Registrarsand Investor ServicesLimited. The dividend payable as at period end does not

attract interest.

Below is the sensitivity analysis of the principal actuarial assumptions adopted in determining the employee benefit liabilities: 

We received an advance of NGN 2.5b as at the period end  which accounted for significant change in the contract liability in the 

current period.

Revenueis recognisedwhencontrolof goodsaretransferredto customer,beingat thepoint thegoodsaredeliveredto thecustomers.

When the customerinitially makespaymentfor the purchaseof goods,the transactionprice receivedat that point is recognisedas

contract liabilities until the goods have been delivered to the customer.

Security deposits are collateral deposits paid by dealers who maintain credit facilities with the Company. These amounts are set-off 

agianst trade receivables from these dealers on a periodic basis to cater for probable losses from sales to customers 
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26 Trade and other payables

30 Jun. 2023 31 Dec. 2022

ô000 ô000

Trade payables (Note 26(a))             7,470,795                       3,015,108 

Accrued expenses             1,024,247                       1,064,651 

Amounts due to joint arrangement partners (Note 26(b))                129,547                          140,246 

Bridging allowance (Note 26(c))             6,170,844                       6,108,284 

Amounts due to related parties (Note 32(e))             7,136,719                       3,986,276 

Total financial liabilities           21,932,152                     14,314,565 

Non financial liabilities

Statutory deductions (Note 26(d))                352,315                          173,555 

Security deposits (Note 26(e)) 1,647,206                                  1,580,306 

1,999,521            1,753,861                      

          23,931,673                     16,068,426 

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

27 Short term borrowings

30 Jun. 2023 31 Dec. 2022

ô000 ô000

Bank overdraft (Note 22, Note 28(a))                          -                                      -   

Bank borrowing (Import Finance and other short term facilities)              1,411,105                       1,411,105 

Total Borrowings             1,411,105                       1,411,105 

Movement of short term borrowings received to statement of cash flows is as follows:

30 Jun. 2023 31 Dec. 2022

ô000 ô000

Balance as at 1 January             1,411,105 1,411,105                      

Additions           17,348,091 34,533,787                    

Repayments          (17,348,091) (34,533,787)                   

Balance 1,411,105 1,411,105

a) The interest expense incurred in the period relating to overdraft and short-term borrowing is NGN22.9million (2022:NGN42.9 million). 

28 Prepayments

30 Jun. 2023 31 Dec. 2022

ô000 ô000

Other Prepayments-Rent, Insurances & others                189,745                          149,124 

               189,745 149,124

Bridging allowancerepresentsamountdueto thePetroleumEqualisationFundManagementBoardas contributionto theFund.It is

charged on every litre of product lifted from Pipelines and Product Marketing Company.

Included in trade payablesis an amount of NGN467.2million, due to one of the Company'svendors which bears interest

on  expiration  of  credit  policy  granted  to  the  Company. The was no interest charged on this during the period (Note 11(a)).

Amount relates to cash received from other parties of the Joint Aviation Facility for the running of the facility by the Company. 

This representsstatutorydeductionswhich aremandatedby law or statute.They includeValue Added Tax (VAT), Withholding

Tax  (WHT)  liabilities  and  Pay-As-You-Earn  (PAYE)liabilities, which are to be remitted to the relevant tax authorities.

The Company's exposure to liquidity risk and currency risks are disclosed in Note 31(b) and 31(c) respectively.

Thesearecollateraldepositspaidby dealerswho maintaincredit facilities with theCompany.Theseamountsareset-off againsttrade

receivables from these dealers on a periodic basis to cater for probable losses from sales to customers.  See Notes 31(a,iv).

Thesedepositsdo not bear interestand are refundableto the dealersat anytime they or the Companyterminatesthe business

arrangements in the event that the amount is in excess of the outstanding receivable.
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30 Jun. 2023 31 Dec. 2022

ô000 ô000

Non-current portion                          -                                      -   

Current portion                189,745                          149,124 

               189,745                          149,124 

Movement in prepayment 30 Jun. 2023 31 Dec. 2022

ô000 ô000

Balance as at 1st January                149,124                            56,416 

Addition                212,213                          341,262 

Release to profit or loss               (171,592)                        (248,554)

Balance 189,745 149,124

29 Provisions

30 Jun. 2023 31 Dec. 2022

ô000 ô000

Balance at 1st January                224,179                            98,430 

Provisions made during the period                  22,925                              5,371 

Reversal of legal provision                          -                             (46,139)

Changes in estimate                          -                            170,702 

Reversal on decommisioning provision on terminated leases                          -                               (4,185)

Balance                247,105                          224,179 

Non-current-Asset Retirement Obligation 247,105                                        224,179 

Current-Legal -                                                         -   

               247,105                          224,179 

30 Jun. 2023 31 Dec. 2022

ô000 ô000

Legal                          -                                      -   

Asset Retirement Obligation                247,105                          224,179 

               247,105                          224,179 

30 Lease Liabilities

i  Right of use assets

The Companyleasesland andthereaferconstructsits fuelling stations.The leasestypically run for an averageperiod of 10 years,

with an option to renew the lease after that date. Lease paymentsareusuallyrenegotiatedcloseto the expirationof the lease

term to reflect market rentals. 

Information about leases for which the Company is a lessee is presented below:

Asset retirement obligation relates to the estimateof costs to be incured by the Company in dismantlingandremovingthe

undergroundtankandotherstructureson the leasedland after theexpirationof the lease.Thecompanyoccupiessomeretail stations

under a leaseagreementin which provison is madeto take careof decommissioningcost at the expiration of thoseleases.The

duration  of the leases is ten years and some are with renewal clauses. 

The relevant assumption used in determination of the asset retirement obligation has been disclosed in note 3(iii)

Right of useassetsrelatedto leasedland that do not meetthe definition of investmentpropertyarepresentedasproperty,plant and

equipement.        
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30 Jun. 2023 31 Dec. 2022

Cost ô000 ô000

Cost as at 1 January             1,220,333                       1,107,948 

Additions                  18,262                          170,702 

Lease terminated                          -                             (58,317)

Closing             1,238,595                       1,220,333 

Allowance for depreciation

Balance at 1st January                382,302                          305,615 

Charge for the period                  65,339                            98,604 

Depreciation on lease cancalled                          -                             (21,917)

Balance                447,640                          382,302 

Carrying Amount as at the period end                790,955                          838,031 

a.

b.

ii  Amounts recognised in profit or loss
30 Jun. 2023 31 Dec. 2022

ô000 ô000

Depreciation expense on right-of-use assets (Note 9) 65,339 98,604

Interest expense on lease liabilities (Note 11)                  27,514 55,849

iii Lease liability

30 Jun. 2023 31 Dec. 2022

ô000 ô000

Balance at 1st January                524,257                          509,387 

Interest on lease liability                  27,514                            55,849 

Lease liability terminated                          -                             (18,761)

Interest Reversal on terminated leases                          -                             (11,217)

Lease Payments                 (15,000)                          (11,000)

Balance as at period end                536,771                          524,257 

The timing of the lease liabilities is as follows:

30 Jun. 2023 31 Dec. 2022

ô000 ô000

Current                427,863                          420,676 

Non Current                108,908                          103,581 

               536,771                          524,257 

Maturity Analysis of lease liabilities 

Amount Amount

ô000 ô000

Year 1                427,863                          420,676 

Year 2                  46,673                            44,390 

Year 3                  62,236                            59,191 

               536,771                          524,257 

The Company's exposure to liquidity risk is disclosed in Note 31

Leasehold land

The Company has leases for some of its retail outlets, with the exception of short-term leases  and leases of low-value underlying 

assets, each lease is reflected on the statement of financial position as a right -of-use asset. The average lease term is ten years (2021: 

ten years).

Amortization charge( as stated above) is included in selling and distribution expenses in the statement of profit or loss, because our 

retail stations are revenue generating unit.
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31  Financial Risk Management & Financial Instruments

The Company has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:

·         Credit risk

·         Liquidity risk

·         Market risk

Risk management framework

This note presentsinformation abouttheCompanyôsexposureto eachof the aboverisks, theCompanyôsobjectives,policies and

processesfor measuringandmanagingrisk, andtheCompanyôsmanagementof capital.Furtherquantitativedisclosuresareincluded

throughout these financial statements.

TheBoardof Directorshasoverall responsibilityfor theestablishmentandoversightof theCompanyôsrisk managementframework.

The Board hasestablishedthe strategicand financeplanningcommittee,which is responsiblefor developingand monitoring the

Companyôs risk management policies. The committee reports regularly to the Board of Directors on its activities.

TheCompanyôsAudit Committeeoverseeshow managementmonitorscompliancewith theCompanyôsrisk managementpoliciesand

procedures,andreviewstheadequacyof therisk managementframeworkin relationto therisksfacedby theCompany.InternalAudit

undertakesbothregularandadhoc reviewsof compliancewith establishedcontrolsandprocedures,theresultsof which arereported

to Senior Management of the Company and the audit committee.

Extension options:

Some leases contain extension options exercisableby the Company at the expiration of the non- cancellable contract

period. Where practicable,the Companyseeksto include extensionoptions in newleasesto provideoperationalflexibility. The

extensionoptions held are exercisableonly by the Company and not by the lessors. The Company assessesat lease

commencementdate whether it is reasonablycertain to exercisethe extensionoptions. The Companyreassesseswhether it is

reasonably certain to exercise the options if there is a significant event or significant changes in circumstances within its control.

TheCompanyôsrisk managementpoliciesareestablishedto identify andanalyzethe risks facedby the Company,to setappropriate

risk limits andcontrols,andto monitorrisksandadherenceto limits. Risk managementpoliciesandsystemsarereviewedregularlyby

the strategicand financeplanningcommitteeto reflect changesin marketconditionsand theCompanyôsactivities.The Company,

throughits trainingandmanagementstandardsandprocedures,aimsto developa disciplinedandconstructivecontrolenvironmentin

which all employees understand their roles and obligations.
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(a) Credit risk

Impairment losses on financial assets recognised in profit or loss were as follows:

30 Jun. 2023 31 Dec. 2022

ô000 ô000

Impairment (Reversal)/loss on trade receivables  Note 31(a)(iv)             (85,236)           (503,708)

Impairment of Petroleum Equalization Fund receivables (Note 31(a)(iv))          1,000,000             500,000 

Impairment on related party receivables (Note 31(a)(iv))           (209,280)             314,704 

            705,485             310,996 

(i) Maximum credit exposure

Gross Impairment Net Gross Impairment Net

ô000 ô000 ô000 ô000 ô000 ô000

Trade receivables       2,754,955         (1,398,561)          1,356,394 2,738,916 (1,483,796)       1,255,120

Due from related parties       1,984,025            (149,778)          1,834,247 556,511 (359,057)          197,453

Due from regulators (Government 

entities) :

Petroleum Equalisation Fund (PEF)       9,326,598         (1,646,592)          7,680,006 9,950,791 (646,592)          9,304,199

DMO holdback       1,600,000                        -            1,600,000 1,600,000 -                   1,600,000

-            Other receivables          106,707                        -               106,707 91,108 -                   91,108

15,772,285         (3,194,930) 12,577,355 14,937,325 (2,489,445)       12,447,880

(ii)  Trade and other receivables

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customeror counterpartyto a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual

obligations,  and  arises  principally  from  the Company's receivables from customers and investments in debt securities.

TheCompanyôsexposureto credit risk is influencedmainly by theindividual characteristicsof eachcustomer.Managementhascreditpoliciesin place

andtheexposureto creditrisk is monitoredonanongoingbasisby anestablishedcreditcommitteeheadedby theManagingDirector.Managementalso

considersthe factorsthat may influencethe credit risk of its customerbase,including thedefault risk associatedwith the industryin which customers

operate.

Therisk managementcommitteehasestablisheda creditpolicy underwhicheachnewcustomeris analysedindividually for creditworthinessbeforethe

Companyôsstandardpaymentanddeliverytermsandconditionsareoffered.TheCompanyôscreditassessmentprocessincludescollectingcashdeposits

from customers.Thesecontractliabilities andsecuritydepositsarenon interestbearingandrefundable,net of any outstandingamounts(if any) upon

terminationof the businessrelationshipandareclassifiedascurrentliability (Notes24 and26). Credit limits areestablishedfor qualifying customers

andtheselimits arereviewedregularlyby theCredit Committee.Customersthat fail to meettheCompanyôsbenchmarkcreditworthinessmaytransact

with the Company only on a prepayment basis.

TheCreditCommitteereviewseachcustomerôscredit limit in line with thecustomersôperformance,feedbackfrom salesteamandperceivedrisk factor

assignedto thecustomer.TheCompany'sreviewincludesexternalratings,if theyareavailable,financialstatements,creditagencyinformation,industry

informationandin somecasesbankreferences.Salelimits areestablishedfor eachcustomerandreviewedquarterly.Any salesexceedingthoselimits

require approval from the risk management committee.

The Companylimits its exposureto credit risk from tradereceivablesby establishinga maximumpaymentperiod of 30 to 45 daysfor retail and

commercial customers respectively.

In monitoring customer credit risk, customers are grouped according to their credit characteristics, which are: retail, aviation and commercial/industrial.

The Companyis taking actionsto limit its exposureto customersin general.In the currentperiod, the Companymadecertainchangesto its credit

policy; reducingthe credit exposureto aviationcustomersby dealingwith themon a cashandcarry basisas the Company'sexperienceis that these

customers have a higher risk of payment default than others.

31 Dec. 202230 Jun. 2023

The maximum exposure to credit risk for trade and other receivables at the reporting date by type of counterparty was:
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30 Jun. 2023 31 Dec. 2022

ô000 ô000

Retail customers             461,731          1,444,275 

Commercial and industrial             312,331             312,331 

Aviation             645,820             673,726 

1,419,882 2,430,332

(iii)

Retail Customers*                                         

30 June 2023 

Weighted 

average loss 

rate

Gross 

carrying 

amount

Loss 

allowance

 In thousand of Naira % ô000 ô000

Current (not past due) 78.52%           18,837               14,791 

1ï30 days past due 82.24%           36,843               30,299 

31ï60 days past due 87.27%             1,023                    893 

61ï180 days past due 92.45%           14,787               13,671 

181ï365 days past due 97.53%           20,720               20,207 

More than 365 days past due 100.00%         369,521             369,521 

461,731 449,383

Retail Customers*                                         

31 December 2021

Weighted 

average loss 

rate

Gross 

carrying 

amount

Loss 

allowance

 In thousand of Naira % ô000 ô000

Current (not past due) 14.01%         212,524               29,772 

1ï30 days past due 9.80%         142,891               13,997 

31ï60 days past due 16.44%         162,730               26,756 

61ï180 days past due 17.43%         152,148               26,518 

181ï365 days past due 33.61%         409,538             137,661 

More than 365 days past due 100.00%         364,443             364,443 

1,444,275 599,148

Commercial/Industries Customers             

30 June 2023

Weighted 

average loss 

rate

Gross 

carrying 

amount

Loss 

allowance

 In thousand of Naira % ô000 ô000

Current (not past due) 81.59%        3,437.48                 2,805 

1ï30 days past due 82.97%      35,938.29               29,820 

31ï60 days past due 91.73%      25,697.66               23,573 

61ï180 days past due 98.13%                  -                         -   

181ï365 days past due 89.26%           398.33                    356 

More than 365 days past due 100.00%    246,858.80             246,859 

312,331 303,411

Expected credit loss assessment as at 30 June 2023

At 30 June 2023, the exposure to credit risk for trade receivables and contract assets by type of counterparty was as follows.

The Companydoesnot requirecollateral in respectof tradeand other receivables.The Companydoesnot havetradereceivablefor which no loss

allowance is recognised because of collateral.

TheCompanyusesanallowancematrix to measuretheECLsof tradereceivablesfrom customers,which comprisea largenumberof small to medium

balances.

Lossratesarecalculatedusinga 'singledefaultômethodbasedon theprobabilityof a receivableprogressingthroughsuccessivestagesof delinquencyto

write-off. Single default ratesare calculatedseparatelyfor exposuresin different segmentsbasedon commoncredit risk characteristics- mainly

customer type.

The following table provides information about the exposure to credit risk and ECLs for trade receivables as at 30 June 2023.

Expected credit loss assessment for government and related party receivables at 30 June 2023

Expected credit loss assessment for trade receivables at 30 June 2023

Exposureswithin eachcredit risk gradearesegmentedby counterpartytype (PEF,PPPRAandrelatedparties)andan ECL rateis calculatedfor each

segment based on the probability of default and a consideration of forward looking information.

The Company allocates each exposure to a credit risk grade based on data that is determined to be predictive of the risk of loss (including but not limited 

to externalratings,auditedfinancialstatementsandmanagementaccountsof customers)andapplyingexperiencedcredit judgement.Credit risk grades

aredefinedusingqualitativeandquantitativefactorsthat areindicativeof the risk of defaultandarealignedto externalcredit rating definitionsfrom

agencies (Moody's and Standard and Poors)
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Commercial/Industries Customers             

31 December 2021

Weighted 

average loss 

rate

Gross 

carrying 

amount

Loss 

allowance

 In thousand of Naira % ô000 ô000

Current (not past due) 0.00%             2,931                       -   

1ï30 days past due 20.21%           73,318               16,896 

31ï60 days past due 67.75%                117                      30 

61ï180 days past due 72.13%         252,612                 6,926 

181ï365 days past due 85.05%         108,657               20,674 

More than 365 days past due 100.00%         183,280             183,280 

620,915 227,806

Aviation customers                                        

30 June 2023

Weighted 

average loss 

rate

Gross 

carrying 

amount

Loss 

allowance

 In thousand of Naira % ô000 ô000

Current (not past due) 84.66%                  -                         -   

1ï30 days past due 96.02%                    0                        0 

31ï60 days past due 96.02%             1,343                 1,290 

61ï180 days past due 96.09%                  -                         -   

181ï365 days past due 96.92%                    0                        0 

More than 365 days past due 100.00%         644,477             644,477 

645,820 645,767

Aviation customers                                        

31 December 2021

Weighted 

average loss 

rate

Gross 

carrying 

amount

Loss 

allowance

 In thousand of Naira % ô000 ô000

Current (not past due) 54.89%           24,164               13,263 

1ï30 days past due 80.88%                    0                        0 

31ï60 days past due 83.35%                    0                        0 

61ï180 days past due 83.51%             4,364                 3,644 

181ï365 days past due 91.17%           59,592               54,328 

More than 365 days past due 100.00%         585,607             585,607 

673,726 656,843

* This has been adjusted with Contract liabilities and security deposits. (See Note 24).

Lossratesarebasedon actualcredit lossexperienceover thepasttwo to threeyears.Theseratesareadjustedto reflect economicconditions for the

period over which the historical data has beencollected, current conditions and the Companyôsview of economic conditions over the

expected lives of the receivables (forward looking information). Forward looking information is re-evaluated at every reporting date.

For instance, the Company determined that the Gross Domestic Product (GPD) has the most significant impact on the ability of the

counterpartiesto settle receivables.Therefore,if GDP growth rate is expectedto significantly deteriorate,over the next year, which can result in

increased default, the historical default rate is adjusted.
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iv) Movements in the allowance for impairment of financial assets

Balance

1-Jan-2019

Balance

1-Jan-2022

Net 

remeasurement 

of loss allowance

Balance 

31-Dec-2022

Recognised in 

profit or loss

Balance 

30 Jun-2023

ô000 ô000 ô000 ô000 ô000

Truck loan receivables                        -                           -                         -                            -                                   -   

Trade receivables           1,987,502              (503,708)          1,483,794                 (85,236)                   1,398,559 

PEF receivables              146,593                500,000             646,593             1,000,000                    1,646,593 

Related party receivables                44,353 314,704                          359,057               (209,280)                      149,778 

Total           2,178,448                310,996          2,489,445                705,485                    3,194,930 

v) Due from Government entities 

vi) Due from related parties

vii) Other receivables

viii) Cash and cash equivalents

TheDirectorshaveappliedjudgementin theCompany'sassessmentof therecoverabilityof its tradeandotherreceivableswhich

arepastduebut not impaired.The significant judgementinvolved estimationof future cashflows andthe timing of thosecash

flows. Basedon theassessmentof theDirectors,theunimpairedbalancesarerecoverableandaccordingly,no further impairment

is therefore recorded.

This relates to amounts receivable from PEF with respect to bridging claims.

Determinationof amountsdue are basedon existing regulations/guidelinesand impairmentis only recognizedwhen changes

occur in the regulationsthat prohibit or limit recoveryof previously recognizedamounts.For bridging claims amountingto

7.68billion (Dec 2022: 9.30billion) recognizedas receivable(Note 18), possibilitiesexist dependingon negotiationsthat

settlementwill occur via a set off to the extent of bridging allowancesamountingto 6.17billion(Dec 2022: 6.11billion)

recordedasa liability (Note26). However,asthe right of setoff doesnot exist, theamountshavebeenpresentedgrossin these

financial statements. 

TheCompanyhastransactionswith its parentandotherrelatedpartiesby virtue of beingmembersof theMRS Group.Payment

termsare usually not establishedfor transactionswithin the Group companiesand amountsreceivablefrom membersof the

Grouparecontractuallysettledon a netbasis.Relatedpartyreceivablebalanceswereassessedfor impairmentin accordancewith

IFRS 9. See Note 31(a)(iv)).

Otherreceivablesincludesemployeereceivablesandothersundryreceivables.TheCompanyreviewsthebalancesduefrom this

categoryon a yearlybasistaking into considerationfunctionssuchascontinuedbusiness/employmentrelationshipandability to

offset amountsagainsttransactionsdue to theseparties.Wheresuchdoesnot exist, the amountsare impaired.Therewereno

impairment loss recognised in this category of receivables during the period. (Dec 2022: Nil).

The movement in the allowance for impairment in respect of financial assets during the period was as follow

The Companyheld cashandcashequivalentsof 2.2billion asat 30 June2023(Dec 2021: 3.2billion), which representsits

maximumcredit exposureon theseassets.Thecredit risk on this is not significantascashandcashequivalentresidewith banks

that have good credit ratings issued by reputable international rating agencies.
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(b) Liquidity risk

Notes

Carrying 

amount

Contractual cash 

flows

6 months or less

ô000 ô000 ô000

Non-derivative financial liabilities

Other short-term borrowings 27 1,411,105 1,411,105 1,411,105

Dividend payable 25 169,851 169,851 169,851

Trade and other payables* 26 21,932,152 21,932,152 21,932,152

23,513,108 23,513,108 23,513,108

Overdraft and other short-term borrowings  27 1,411,105 1,411,105 1,411,105

Dividend payable   25 169,851 169,851 169,851

Trade and other payables*   26 14,314,565 14,314,565 14,314,565

15,895,521 15,895,521 15,895,521

* Excludes advances received from customers, statutory liabilities and security deposit.

c) Market risk

Currency risk

The Companymanagesmarket risks by keeping costs low through various cost optimization programs.Moreover, market

developments are monitored and discussed regularly, and mitigating actions are taken where necessary.

TheCompanyis exposedto currencyrisk on sales,purchasesandborrowingsthat aredenominatedin a currencyotherthanthe

functionalcurrencyof theCompany,primarily theNaira.Thecurrencyin which theseforeigncurrencytransactionsprimarily are

denominatedis US Dollars (USD). Thecurrencyrisk is the risk that the fair valueor futurecashflows of a financial instrument

will fluctuate due to the changes in foreign exchange rates.

In managingcurrencyrisk, theCompanyaimsto reducethe impactof short-termfluctuationson earnings.TheCompanyhasno

exportsales,thustheexposureto currencyrisk in thatregardis nonexistent.TheCompanyôssignificantexposureto currencyrisk

relatesto its importationof variousproductsfor resaleor for usein production.Although theCompanyhasvariousmeasuresto

mitigateexposureto foreignexchangeratemovement,overthelongerterm,however,permanentchangesin exchangerateswould

have an impact on profit. The Company monitors the movement in the currency rates on an ongoing basis. 

The following are the contractualmaturitiesof financial liabilities, including estimatedinterestpaymentsand excluding the

impact of netting agreements.

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Companywill encounterdifficulty in meetingthe obligationsassociatedwith its financial

liabilities that are settledby delivering cashor anotherfinancial asset.TheCompanyôsapproachto managingliquidity is to

ensure,as far as possible,that it will alwayshavesufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, underboth normal and

stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Companyôs reputation.

Marketrisk is therisk thatchangesin marketprices,suchasforeignexchangerates,interestratesandequitypriceswill affectthe

Companyôsincomeor thevalueof its holdingsof financial instruments.The objectiveof marketrisk managementis to manage

and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimizing the return.

TheCompanyhasa clearfocuson ensuringsufficient accessto capitalto growthandto refinancematuringdebtobligations.As

partof the liguidity managementprocess,theCompanyhasvariouscreditarrangementwith somebankswhich canbeutilised to

meet its liquidity requirements.

Typically, thecredit termswith customersaremorefavourablecomparedto paymenttermsto its vendorsin orderto helpprovide

sufficient cashon demandto meetexpectedoperationalexpenses,including theservicingof financialobligations.This excludes

the potential impact of extreme circumstances that cannot reasonably be predicted, such as natural disaster.

30 June 2023

31-Dec-22
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Exposure to currency risk

30 Jun. 2023 31 Dec. 2022

In thousands ô000 ô000

Financial assets

Trade and other receivables

USD 249                              233 

Cash  and cash equivalents

USD 546                              554 

Financial liabilities

Short- term borrowings

USD -                          -                                 

Trade and other payables

USD (8,194)                 (10,766)                      

Net statement of financial position exposure

USD                   (7,400)                        (9,979)

Sensitivity analysis

30 June

2023

31 Dec.

2022

30 June

2023

31 Dec.

2022

770.38 430.95 770.88 448.55

Euro 840.33 476.00 840.88 478.92

Interest rate risk profile

30 Jun. 2023 31 Dec. 2022

ô000 ô000

Fixed rate instruments

Bank overdraft and borrowings 1,411,105 1,411,105                  

Trade payables* 1,287,717 2,577,396

US Dollar

In managinginterestraterisk, the Companyaimsto reducethe impactof short-termfluctuationsin earnings.Dividend pay-out

practicesseeka balancebetweengiving goodreturnsto shareholderson onehandandmaintaininga solid debt/equityratio on the

other hand.

At the reporting date, the interest rate profile of the Companyôs interest-bearing financial instruments was:

*Includedin tradepayablesis anamountof 467.2million (Dec2022:NGN377.4million), dueto oneof theCompany'svendors

which bears interest on expiration of credit policy granted to the Company.

A strengthening of the Naira, as indicated below against the  Dollar  at 30 June would have increased profit or loss by the amounts 

shownbelow.This analysisis basedon foreign currencyexchangeratevariancesthat theCompanyconsideredto be reasonably

possible at the end of the reporting period and has no impact on equity. 

Average rate Reporting date spot rate

The Companydoesnot accountfor any fixed ratefinancial assetsandliabilities at fair valuethroughprofit or loss.Thereforea

changein interestratesat theendof thereportingperiodwould not affectprofit or loss.TheCompanydoesnot havevariablerate

instrument.

The Companyôs transactional exposure to Naira (NGN) was based on notional amounts as follows: 
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d) Capital risk management

30 Jun. 2023 31 Dec. 2022

ô000 ô000

Total borrowings (Note 27)             1,411,105 1,411,105                  

Less: Cash and cash equivalents (Note 21) (2,161,140)                           (3,216,445)

Adjusted net debt (750,035)                              (1,805,340)

Total equity           20,809,880                  18,499,446 

Total capital employed           20,059,845                  16,694,106 

Adjusted net debt to equity ratio                   (0.036)                        (0.098)

The Company is not subject to externally imposed capital requirements.

e) Fair value disclosures

Accounting classification and fair value

The Company's financial instruments are categorised as follows:

Financial assets 

at amortised 

cost

Other financial 

liabilities
Total

30 June 2023 ô000 ô000 ô000

Financial assets not measured at fair value

Trade and other receivables (Note 18)        12,577,354                          -                    12,577,354 

Cash and cash equivalents (Note 21)          2,161,140                          -                      2,161,140 

       14,738,494                          -                    14,738,494 

Financial liabilities not measured at fair value

Short term borrowings (Note 27)                       -               1,411,105                    1,411,105 

Trade and other payables  (Note 26)                       -             21,932,152                  21,932,152 

Dividend payable (Note 25)                       -   169,851                       169,851 

Contract liabilities (Note 24)                       -   2,576,066                    2,576,066 

                      -             26,089,174                  26,089,174 

Financial assets 

at amortised 

cost

Other financial 

liabilities
Total

31 December 2022 ô000 ô000 ô000

Financial assets not measured at fair value

Trade and other receivables (Note 18)        12,447,881                          -                    12,447,881 

Cash and cash equivalents (Note 21)          3,216,445                          -                      3,216,445 

       15,664,326                          -                    15,664,326 

Financial liabilities not measured at fair value

Short term borrowings (Note 27)                       -               1,411,105                    1,411,105 

Trade and other payables  (Note 26)                       -             14,314,565                  14,314,565 

Dividend payable (Note 26)                       -                  169,851                       169,851 

Contract liabilities (Note 24)             2,221,109                    2,221,109 

                      -             18,116,630                  18,116,630 

There were no significant changes in the Company's approach to capital management during the period.

Carrying amount

Tradeandotherreceivables,cashandcashequivalent,tradeandotherpayables,dividendpayable,contractliabilities andother

short term borrowingsare the Companyôsshort term financial instruments.Accordingly, managementbelievesthat their fair

values are not expected to be materially different from their carrying values. 

TheBoardôspolicy is to maintaina strongcapitalbasesoasto maintaininvestor,creditorandmarketconfidenceandto sustain

futuredevelopmentof thebusiness.TheCompanymonitorscapitalusinga ratioof "adjustednetdebt"to equity.For this purpose,

adjusted net debt is defined as total borrowings less cash and cash equivalents.

The Companyôs adjusted net debt to equity ratio at the end of the reporting period was as follows:

Thefollowing tableshowsthecarryingamountsandfair valuesof financialassetsandfinancial liabilities. It doesnot includefair

valueinformationfor financialassetsandfinancial liabilities not measuredat fair valuesubsequentto initial recognition,because

the carrying amounts are a reasonable approximation of their fair values.

Carrying amount
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32 Related party transactions

(i) Parent and ultimate controlling entity

(a) MRS Oil and Gas Limited (MOG)

Nature of transactions
30 Jun. 2023 31 Dec. 2022

ô000 ô000

Sales of goods 1,080,000            214,229             

Staff Secondment -                       -                     

Product purchase (7,186,735)           (6,088,800)         

AGO Internal Consumption (151,893)              (221,028)            

Reimbursements for expenses -                       -                     

(b) Petrowest SA (Petrowest)

(c) MRS Holdings Limited

Nature of transactions
30 Jun. 2023 31 Dec. 2022

ô000 ô000

Management fees (227,094)              (214,435)            

Sale of goods 252,484               9,343                 

(d) Net balances due to and from other related entities (Corlay entities) were as follows:

30 Jun. 2023 31 Dec. 2022

ô000 ô000

MRS Benin S. A. 116,418               67,740               

Corlay Togo S. A. 26,502                 11,137               

Corlay Benin S. A 55,086                 9,476                 

Corlay Cote D'Ivoire (198,207)              (113,469)            

Corlay Cameroun S. A. 27,556                 16,034               

27,356                 (9,083)                

Net balance due to MRS Holdings Limited was 1.98 billion (Dec 2022: 1.60 billion)

In current period,thevalueof product stored by MRS Oil and Gas Limited for the Companyamountedto 7.2billion

(Dec 2022: 935,702thousand). The total transactionswith MOG during the period was 6.3billion (Dec 2022: 6.1

billion). The net balance due to MOG is 143 million (Dec 2022: 38.28 million due from MOG)

MRS HoldingsLtd which is a shareholderin CorlayGlobalS.A, theultimateparentof MRS Oil NigeriaPlc; holdsanindirect

interest of 45% in Petrowest (through MOG). The net balance due to Petrowest was 3.1 billion (Dec 2022: 1.78 billion)

The Company entered into the following transactions with the under-listed related parties during the period:

As at theperiodended30 June2023,MRS Africa HoldingsLimited (incorporatedin Bermuda)owned60%of theissuedshare

capital of MRS Oil Nigeria Plc. MRS Africa Holdings Limited is a subsidiaryof Corlay Global SA. The ultimate holding

company is Corlay Global SA incorporated in Panama.  

MRS HoldingsLimited owns50% of thesharesin CorlayGlobal SA, theparentcompanyof MRS Africa HoldingsLimited.

MRS Africa Holdings Limited has a majority shareholding in MRS Oil Nigeria Plc.

MOG is a wholly owned subsidiary of MRS Holdings Limited which is a shareholder in Corlay Global SA. Corlay Global SA 

is the ultimate holding company of MRS Oil Nigeria Plc. The following transactions occurred during the period:
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30 Jun. 2023 31 Dec. 2022

Nature of transactions ô000 ô000

MRS Benin S. A. Reimbursements for expenses -                       

Corlay Togo S. A. Reimbursements for expenses 7,141                   12                      

Corlay Benin S. A Reimbursements for expenses 4,761                   10                      

Corlay Cote D'Ivoire Reimbursements for expenses 2,380                   5                        

(e) Summary of intercompany receivables and payables:

 Receivables Payables Receivables Payables

ô000 ô000 ô000 ô000

Receivables Payables Receivables Payables

MRS Oil and Gas Limited (MOG) 1,505,979           (1,648,983)         452,124               (490,407)            

MRS Holdings Limited                252,484 (2,231,977)         -                       (1,603,311)         

Petrowest                         -            (3,057,551)                          -            (1,779,090)

MRS Benin S. A.                116,418                         -                     67,740                         -   

Corlay Togo S. A.                  26,502                         -                     11,137                         -   

Corlay Benin S. A                  55,086                         -                       9,476                         -   

Corlay Cote D'Ivoire                         -               (198,207)                          -               (113,469)

Corlay Cameroun S. A.                  27,556                         -                     16,034                         -   

1,984,025           (7,136,719)         556,511               (3,986,276)         

All related partiies balances are receivable/payable on demand

(ii) Key management personnel compensation

The Company pays short term benefits to its directors as follows: 

31 Marh 2023
 31 December 

2022

ô000 ô000

Short term employee benefits 9,735 15,730

(iii) Related Party Transactions above 5% of total tangible assets

TheCorlayentitiesaresubsidiariesof CorlayGlobalSA incorporatedin Panama,theparentcompanyof MRS Africa Holdings

Limited, and are thereby affiliates of MRS Oil Nigeria Plc. 

All outstandingbalancesdo not bear interestand excludevalue of productsstoredby MRS Oil and GasLimited for the

Company.

In line with NigerianStockExchange- RulesGoverningTransactionswith RelatedPartiesor InterestedPersons,theCompany

hasdisclosedtransactionswith relatedpartieswhich are individually or in aggregategreaterthan 5% of the total tangible

assets.The total tangibleassetsamountedto 19.13billion andthe 5% disclosurelimit is 968.6million.During theperiod,

the Company had entered into transactions above the 5% disclosure limit with MRS Oil and Gas Limited.  

30 Jun. 2023 31 Dec. 2022
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33

(i) 

(ii)

(iii)

Jun-23 Margin

ô000 % of Total ô000 % of Total ô000 % of Total

Retail/C&I               55,569,607 93%           46,984,591 93%          8,585,016 96% 15%

Aviation                 1,985,583 3%             1,903,975 4%               81,607 1% 4%

Lubes                 2,093,704 4%             1,849,567 4%             244,137 3% 12%

Total               59,648,894 100%           50,738,133 100%          8,910,760 100%

Jun-22 Margin

ô000 % of Total ô000 % of Total ô000% of Total

Retail/C&I               37,265,933 62%           34,895,018 69%          2,370,914 27% 6%

Aviation                 3,454,749 6%             3,140,989 6%             313,760 4% 9%

Lubes                 1,940,257 3%             1,908,677 4%               31,580 0% 2%

Total               42,660,939 72%           39,944,684 79%          2,716,255 30%

34 Subsequent events

35 Contingencies

(a)

(b)

36 Comparative figures 

Reclassified from Reclassified to Naira  

Nô000 

Cost of Sales 635,860

50,158

Selling and distribution expenses 18,382
Administrative Expenses- Station running expenses

Thereareno significantsubsequenteventsthat could havehada materialeffect on the financialpositionof theCompanyasat 30 June2023

and on the profit for the period ended on that date that have not been taken into account in these financial statements.

There are certain lawsuits pending against the Company in various courts of law. The total contingent liabilities in respect of pending litigations 

asat 30 June2023 is N 14.5 billion. Per the assessmentof the Company'slegal team,the estimatedliability is about 303.5million (Dec

2022: 711.93million).The actionsarebeingcontestedandthe directorsareof the opinion that no significant liability will arisefrom these

legalcases.Also, thesumof 126.96million ( Dec2022: 145.54)representsthevalueof law casesinstitutedby thecompanyastheendof

the reporting period.

Segment reporting

Revenue Cost of sales Gross profit

The Company has identified three operating segments:

Retail/ Commercial & Industrial - this segmentis responsiblefor the saleand distribution of petroleumproducts(refined

products) to retail customers and industrial customers.

Aviation  - this segment involves in the sales of Aviation Turbine Kerosene (ATK).

Segment assets and liabilities are not disclosed as these are not regularly reported to the Chief Operating decision maker.

Segment revenues and cost of sales

Lubricants - this segment manufactures and sells lubricants and greases.

In accordancewith the provisionsof IFRS 8 ïOperatingSegments;the operatingsegmentsusedto presentsegmentinformation were

identified on the basisof internal reportsusedby the Company'sBoardof Directorsto allocateresourcesto the segmentsand assesstheir

performance. The Managing Director is MRS Oil Nigeria Plcôs ñChief operating decision makerò within the meaning of IFRS 8.

Segmentinformation is provided on the basisof product segmentsas the Companymanagesits businessthrough three product lines -

Retail/Commercial& Industrial,Aviation, andLubricants.Thebusinesssegmentspresentedreflect themanagementstructureof theCompany

andthe way in which theCompanyôsmanagementreviewsbusinessperformance.The accountingpoliciesof the reportablesegmentsarethe

same as described in Note 3.

Selling & Deistribution Expenses- Freight 

Expenses

Administrative ExpensesïAmortization of ROU 

assets

 Selling and distribution 

expenses  

Revenue Cost of sales

Certain comparative balances have been reclassified to conform to the current period grouping

TheDirectorsareof theopinionthatall knownliabilities andcommitments,which arerelevantin assessingthestateof affairsof

the Company, have been taken into consideration in the preparation of these financial statements.

Financial commitments

Gross profit

Pending litigations 

MON Plc Q2, 2023 -45



MRS Oil Nigeria Plc.

CƛƴŀƴŎƛŀƭ {ǘŀǘŜƳŜƴǘǎς ол WǳƴŜ нлно

WHISTLE BLOWING:

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

The companyhasa SecuritiesTrading Policy in place,which guidesits Directors,ExecutiveManagement,Officers and

Employeeson insidertradingaswell astradingof thecompanyôsshares.Thecompanycontinuesto carryout its operations

in line with procedures consistent with excellence through partnership and transparency.

MRS Oil Nigeria Plc has establisheda ComplaintsManagementPolicy which stipulatesguidelines,on responsesto

feedbackfrom investors,clientsandotherstakeholders.ThePolicyprovidesanimpartial, fair objectiveprocessof handling

stakeholdersô complaints as well as an established monitoring and implementation procedure.

The Companywith all laws in Nigeria that are relevantto its operations.In line with provisionsof the Securitiesand

ExchangeCommissionôsCodeof CorporateGovernance,a whistleBlowing policy exists,for thereportingof serious,actual

and suspectedconcernsof integrity and unethicalbehavior.An extract of this Policy can be found on the companyôs

website.  

The Companyefficiently and effectively respondsto feedback,to improve and exceedcustomersôexpectations,client

experience, as well as to deliver excellence service to its stakeholders.

Basedon the recommendationsof theSecuritiesandExchangeCommission(SEC),theNigerianExchangeLimited Listing

Rules(as Amended),as well as other internationalbestpractices,the companyhascompliedwith corporategovernance

requirementsandbestpractices.MRS Oil Nigeria Plc is committedto the continuedsustenanceof the principlesof sound

corporate governance.

Thecompanyhasmadespecificenquiryof all directorsasto whethertheyhavecompliedwith requiredstandardsetout in

the lsiting rules and the company's trading policy and the company is not aware of any non-complaince.
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Free Float Computation

Shareholding Structure/Free Float Status

Description Unit % Unit %

Issued Share Capital 342,884,707           100.00 342,884,707 100.00

Substantial Shareholdings (5% and above)

MRS Africa Holdings Limited 205,730,807           60%       205,730,807 60%

First Pen Cust/Asset Management Corporation of Nigeria 35,909,818             10%         35,909,818 10%

Total Substantial Shareholdings 241,640,624              70% 241,640,624        70%

Ms. Amina Maina 37,278                    1.1%                37,278 1.0%

Sir Sunday N. Nwosu 7,089                      0.2%                  7,089 0.2%

Mr Mathew Akinlade 642                         0.0%                     642 0.0%

Total Directors' Shareholdings 45,009                       1.3% 45,009                 1.2%

Free Float in Units and Percentage 101,199,074              28% 101,199,074        28%

Free Float in Value          2,828,514,111    1,426,906,940 

Declaration:  

(B)   MRS Oil  Nigeria Plc with a free float value of =N= 2.83 billion as at 30 June 2023, is compliant with The Exchange's free float 

requirements for companies listed on the Main Board.

30 June 2023 31 December 2022

Directors' Shareholdings (direct and indirect), excluding directors with substantial interests

(A)   MRS Oil  Nigeria Plc with a free float percentage of 28% as at 30 June 2023, is compliant with The Exchange's free float 

requirements for companies listed on the Main Board.
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We the undersigned hereby certify the following with regards to our financial report for the period

ended 30 June 2023 that:

(a) We have reviewed the Report;

(b) To the best of our knowledge, the Report does not contain:

(i) Any untrue statement of a material fact, or

(ii) Omit to state a material fact, which would make the statements, misleading in the light of the

circumstances under which such statements were made;

( c ) To the best of our knowledge, the Financial Statement and other financial information

included in the Report fairly present in all material respects the financial condition and results 

of operation of the company as of and for periods presented in the Report.

(d) We:

(i) Are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal controls.

(ii) Have designed such internal controls to ensure that material information relating to the 

Company, particularly during the period in which the periodic reports are being prepared;

( e ) We have disclosed to the Auditors of the Company and the Audit Committee;

Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have 

significant roles in the Companyôs internal controls.

__________________________________         _______________________________

      Mr. Samson Adejonwo

                Managing Director (Ag.)

____________________________________

Chief Amobi D. Nwokafor 

(Director)

FRC/2013/ICAN/00000002770

27 July 2023

FRC/2020/003/00000022083 FRC/2020/001/00000021998

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 60(2) OF INVESTMENT AND SECURITIES ACT

NO. 29 OF 2007

Mr. Marco Storari

(Managing Director) (Chief Finance Officer)
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